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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of HOUSE BUILDING
FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”) as at 31 December 2013 and the related.
profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and
statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year
then ended and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system
of internal control, and prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with
the approved accounting standards and the requirements of the Companies Ordinance,
1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in
Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the above said statements are free of any material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall
presentation of the above said statements. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we report that:

(a) Since the date of our appointment was subsequent to the reporting date, we could
not perform necessary cutoff procedures and remained unable to observe the cash
counting and physical verification of certain moveable assets of the Company at the
year end;

(b)  Bank reconciliation statements of various bank accounts include long outstanding
debit and credit entries of Rupees 10.003 million and Rupees 33.122 million
respectively which remained unidentified and unadjusted in the financial
statements. The management did not provide us any satisfactory explanation
regarding these unidentified entries. Further, out of fifty seven (57) requests
circularized to the banks, where the Company maintains its bank accounts, having
balances aggregating to Rupees 234.998 million, we did not receive responses
against forty (40) requests from the banks with balances totaling to Rupees 119.311
million;

(c) The outstanding balance of ‘advances-net’ as disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statements is not in agreement with underlying subsidiary records at Head Office.
There was a difference of Rupees 9.524 million in outstanding principal at 31
December 2013. Further, the income on advances booked in previous years
amounting to Rupees 88.599 million was reversed in- these financial statements.
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Such reversals arise on recurring basis due to erroneous recording of income

owing to information system inefficiencies and posting errors;

The Company manages different databases for its customer portfolio through
information system at head office and branches which is not integrated. On our test
check of some of the partners’ ledger accounts of advances at branches, we
identified differences in principal outstanding and respective provision against non-
performing advances, rental outstanding, group insurance premium outstanding and
property insurance premium outstanding between database managed by the head
office and database managed by branches. No exercise was conducted during the
year by the management to reconcile, ascertain and adjust these differences in the
books of account. Further, we were also not allowed to circularize direct balance
confirmation letters to partners due to such differences.

Provision against non-performing advances was not made as per Prudential
Regulations for Consumer Financing. Classification of non-performing advances was
determined by dividing total defaulted amount with amount of an installment to
calculate overdue period instead of calculating exact overdue period from the due
date. The partial amount of an overdue installment was also considered as full
installment in aforesaid calculation. We also noted that the benefit of Forced Sale
Value was not taken or less taken in some of the classified accounts while
calculating provision against non-performing advances. During the year, the
management did not carry out'any exercise to ascertain and account for the effect of
this practice on provision against non-performing advances, if any. Further, during
the year ended 31 December 2011 an exercise was carried out to rectify the effects
of flawed ascertainment of the provision against non-performing advances and an
additional provision of Rupees 160.092 million was accounted for in the general
ledger. However, the management did not post such provision in the respective
partners’ subsidiary ledger accounts so far.

The management did not provide us proper justification and satisfactory explanation
of placing following balances in Deferred Credits as disclosed in note 12.4 to the
financial statements:

i. As previously required under the HBFC (Amendment) Ordinance, 2001,
‘demand charges net of recovery expenses’ amounting to Rupees 537.213
million were included in Deferred Credits to be used for charitable purpose.
Accumulated donations paid till 31 December 2013 out of this were Rupees 105
million. Since the aforesaid ordinance is no more applicable to the Company,
the accounting treatment of demand charges, recovery expenses and donations
is not in accordance with the applicable approved accounting standards;

ii. Profit commission - net of death claims received from State Life Insurance
Corporation (SLIC) amounting to Rupees 208.562 million accumulated up to 31
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December 2009 was credited in Deferred Credits instead of profit and loss
account when received. Receipts of profit commission from SLIC, subsequent to
aforesaid date, are being offset against advances which at the reporting date
aggregated to Rupees 133.357 million;

iii. Deferred credits include accumulated debit balance on account of expense
provided for doubtful insurance receivable from partners amounting to Rupees
251.238 million which should have been charged to profit and loss account
when created;

iv. Deferred credits include a credit balance of Rupees 52.503 million in respect of
insurance premium received from unidentified partners. Further, it also includes
a debit balance of Rupees 12.495 million on account of property insurance for
which no information is available with the Company;

v. Deferred Credits have also been credited with accumulated profit allocation of
Rupees 954.282 million up to the reporting date, which also includes current
year's profit allocation of Rupees 114.233 million. In our view, these amounts
should have been recognized in profit and loss account in the respective years.

Except for the effects of adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be
necessary, had we been able to satisfy ourselves in respect of the matters stated in the
preceding paragraphs (a) to (g) we report that:

() in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as
required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;

() in our opinion:

(i) the statement of financial position and profit and loss account together with
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are
further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied;

(i) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s
business; and

(iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred
during the year were in accordance with the objects of the Company;

(k) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the statement of financial position, profit and loss account, statement of
comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity
together with the notes forming part thereof conform-with approved accounting
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standards as applicable in Pakistan, and, give the information required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a true
and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31December 2013 and of
the profit, its comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the
year then ended; and

(D in our opinion, no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr
Ordinance, 1980 (XVIll of 1980).

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to note 1.1 to the financial statements which states that the Company
has not complied with the minimum capital requirement of Rupees 6,000 million set out
by State Bank of Pakistan and also discloses the events subsequent to the reporting date
relating to decision made on conversion of borrowings (credit lines) from State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) (Note 11.1.1) along with markup payable into equity of the Company. Our
opinion is not further qualified in respect of this matter.

piin
OMPANY

Chartefed Accountants

Name of engagement partner:
Muhammad Hamid Jan

Date: 22 APR 2016
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT O FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2013

Restated Restated
2013 2012 2011
Note  --------- Rupees in "000 - - --- - - -
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 4 80,564 63,943 57,803
Balances with other banks 5 226,912 168,310 448,761
Lendings to financial institutions 6 2,439,321 181,038 4,432
Investments - net 7 8,033,214 8,855,424 7,839.516
Advances - net 8 9,700,151 9,887,366 10,392,064
Operating fixed asscts 9 344,400 263,500 214,516
Deferred tax asscts 26.2 321,245 449 781 342,088
Other assets 10 506,895 503,681 244,508

21,652,702 20,373,043 19,543,688

LIABILITIES

Bills payable - - -
Borrowings 11 11,392,300 11,695,300 11,992,300
Deposits and other accounts - - -
Sub-ordinated loans - - -
Liabilities against asscts subject (o finance lease . - - -
Deferred tax liabilitics ( - - -
Other liabilities (2012 & 2011; restaled) 12 7,887,394 6,925,454 5,435,195

19,279,694 18,620,754 17,427,495
NET ASSETS 2,373,008 1,752,289 2,116,193

REPRESENTED BY

Share capital 13 3,001,000 3,001.000 3,001,000
Reserves 713,005 636,583 636,583
Accumulated loss (2012 & 2011 restated) (1,552.348)  (2,107,547) (1,734,520)
2,161,657 1,530,036 1,903.063
Advancc against issuc of capital 8.6 218,143 218,143 218,143
(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of assets 14 (6,792) 4,110 (5.013)

2,373,008 1,752,289 2,116,193

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 15

‘fhe annexed notes from | 10 38 form an integral part of these financial statcments.

/
MA/\’:IZ;’G DIRECTOR /)//ﬁ:‘cfr_/7 " DIRECTOR DIRECTOR’



HHOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Restated
2013 2012
Note -------- Rupees in 000 - - -----
Rental / mark-up / return / interest carned 16 2.778.190 2.535.381
Rental / mark-up / return / interest expensed 17 (1,102,481) (1,140.628)
Nel rental / mark-up / interest income 1,675,709 1,394.753
Reversals of provision made against non performing advances 18 378,076 71.350
Reversal of provision for diminution in value of investments 77316 68.895
Provision for diminution in value of lendings to financial institutions - (4.432)
455,392 135.813
Reconciliation adjustments 19 3,160 -
Reversal duc to reliel package and reprocessing adjusiments 20 (351,334) (248,569)
Net rental / mark-up / interest income alter provisions 1,782.907 1.281.997
NON MARK-UP /INTEREST INCOME
IFcc. commission and brokerage income - B
Dividend incomc - -
Income from dealing in lorcign currencies - -
Gain / (loss) on salc of sceurities : - -
Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of investment classified as held for trading - -
Other income 21 52,818 79.138
Total non-mark-up / interest income . 52,818 79,138
1.835.725 1.361.135
NON MARK-UP /INTEREST EXPENSLES
Administrative expenscs 22 (1,323.782) (1.477.605)
Other provisions / write ofTs 23 (13.360) 817
Other charges 24 (11.557) (8.913)
Total non-mark-up / interest expenses (1.318.699) (1.485.701)
487.026 (124.566)
Sharc in resulls ol an associate before taxation 7.8 - -
PROFIT /(LOSS) BEFORE ALLOCATION FOR STATE 487,026 (124.566)
BANK OF PAKISTAN SHARI,
State Bank of Pakistan share ofloss on credit lines 25 - 845
PROFIT /{LOSS) BEFORLE TANATION 487.026 (123.721)
‘Taxation 26
- Current
- for the year (104,917) (40.213)
- prior year - (39)
- Delerred - -
(104.917) (40.254)
PROFIT /(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION 382.109 (163.975)
Basic & diluted earnings / (loss) per share - Rupees 27 1.27 (0.55)

The annexed notes from 1o 38 Torm an integral part of these financial statements,

@Kg;;x - o~

DIRECTOR

DIRECTO

MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECT



HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Restated
2013 2012
------- Rupees in '000-- - - -- -

Profit / (loss) for the year 382,109 (163,975)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reciassificd to profit and loss

- Remeasurement of defined benelit obligations 378,048 (316,745)
- Deferred tax on remeasurcment of defined benefit obligations (128,536) 107,693

Items that may be reclassified subscquently to profit and loss

249,512 (209,052)

Total comprehensive income / (loss) lor the year 631,621 (373,027)

Surplus / deficit on revaluation of "available-for-sale’ securities is presented in statement of financial
position under a scparate head below equity as "Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of assets" in
accordance with the requirements specified by the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the State Bank of
Pakistan vide its BSD Circular 20 dated August 04, 2000 and BSD Circular 10 dated July 13, 2004.

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 Torm an integral part of these financial statements.

V. o X@’”
MANA;iiénnﬁQj(nz 1nupe¢(///// DIRECTOR DIRECTOR




HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Statutory  Accumulated

Share capital Total
reserve loss
Rupees in '000

Balance at December 31, 2011 3,001,000 620,610 (1,070,466) 2,551,144
Restatement alfcct as mentioned in nolc - 15,973 (664,054) (648,081)
3.8(d)
Balance at December 31, 2011 - restated 3,001,000 636,583 (1,734,520) 1,903,063
Comprehensive loss for the year
Loss after tax for the ycar
ended December 31. 2012 - restated - - (163,975) (163,975)
Other comprehensive income - restated - - (209,052) (209,052)

‘ - - (373,027) (373.027)
Transfer to statutory reserve * - restated - - - -
Balance at December 31, 2012 - restated 3,001,000 636,583 (2,107,547) 1,530,036
Comprchensive income for the year
Profit after tax for the year
ended December 31,2013 - - 382,109 382.109
Other comprehensive income - - 249,512 249,512

- - 631,621 631,621

Transfer 1o statutory reserve - 76,422 (76,422) -
Balance at December 31, 2013 3.001.,000 713.005 (1,552.348) 2.161,657

* This represents rescrve created under BPD circular No. 15 of 2004 which requires the Company to credit to
its reserve an amount not less than 20% of its after tax profit till such time the reserve equals the amount of
paid-up capital. Thercaller. a sum not less than 5% of its after tax profit shall be credited to the said reserve.

The annexed notes from | to 38 form an integral part of these financial statcments. k\

qu; ,,/'%f
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HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR TIE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Restated
2013 2012
Note - Rupees in "000 -——---
A.  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES » .
Profit / (loss) before taxation 487,026 (123,721)
Adjustments:
Depreciation 22,780 24,040
Amortization of intangible asscts 630 1,014
Gain on salc of operating lixed assets (1,625) (4,613)
Fixed asscts adjustments 13 173
Provision for dimunition in valuc of lending to financial institutions - 4,432
Reversal of provision for dimunition in value of investments (77,316) (68,895)
Reversals of provision made against non performing advances (378,076) (71,350)
Reconciliation adjustments (3,160) -
Reversal of rental income 351,354 248,569
Rental / mark-up / return / interest expensed 1,102,481 1,140,628
1,017,081 1,273,998
1,504,107 1,150,277
Decrease / (incrcase) in operating asscts
Advances . 217,097 327,479
Lending to financial institutions (2,258,283) (181,038)
Other assets excluding advance tax 48,638 50,179
(1,992,548) 196,620
Increase / (decrecasce) in operating habilitics
Borrowings (303,000) (297.001)
Other liabilitics 287,067 39,999
‘ (15,933) (257,002)
Financial charges paid (39,747) (86,510)
Income tax paid (166,595)" (271,927)
Net cash (used in) / fTows from operating activitics (710,716) 731,458
B. CASII FLOWS IFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure (104,310) (73,080)
Sale proceceds [rom disposal of operating ixed asscts 1,625 5,201
Investments made-net 888,624 (937,890)
Net cash flows [rom / (uscd in) investing activitics 785,939 (1,005,769)
C. CASII FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ) - -
Increase / (deercase) in cash and cash equivalents 75,223 (274.311)
Cash and cash cquivalents at beginning of the year 232,253 506,564
Cash and cash cquivalents at end of the year 28 307,476 232,253

The annexed notes from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements,

. A %/ /.
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1.1

HOUSE BUILDING FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTIS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The House Buiiding Finance Company Limited (the Company) is an unlisted public limited company
incorporated in Pakistan on Junc 13, 2006 under the Companies Ordinance,1984. The registered office of
the Company is situated at Finance and Trade Centre Building, Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi, in the province
of Sindh. Pursuant to a vesting order SRO.1/2007 dated July 25, 2007 issued by the Finance Division -
Government of Pakistan cffective from January 01, 2007, the Company had taken over all assets, running
business, contracts. habilitics and proccedings of the House Building Finance Corporation (HBFC),
established in 1952 under the House Building Finance Corporation Act 1952 (XVII of 1952) by the
Government of Pakistan from closing of the business on December 31, 2006.

The Company is designated as a financial institution by the Federal Government and is providing financing
facilities for the construction, reconstruction, renovation and purchase of houses through a network of 46
district offices and 10 zonal offices throughout Pakistan including Azad Jammu and Kashmir. According
to credit rating report dated July 12, 2014 of JCR-VIS, the long term and short term ratings of the
Company arc "A" and "A2" respectively.

In accordance with BSD Circular No. 19 dated Scptember 05, 2008 the minimum paid up capital
requirement (free of losses) of the Company at December 31, 2009 and in future periods is Rs. 6 billion
till further notification. The paid up capital of the Company (frec of losses) as at December 31, 2013 is Rs.
2.162 Dbillion. State Bank ol Pakistan vide its letter No. BSD/BAID/659/2145/2012 dated February 16,
2012 granted exemiption to the Company from the minimum capital requirement till December 31, 2012 or
complction of privatization / restructuring process, whichever is later. The Company is in process of
financial restructuring and proposal in this regard was submitted to the Ministry of Finance and State Bank
of Pakistan.

Subsequent to year end, a mecting has held on 11 July 2014 between the representatives of the SBP,
Securitics and Iixchange Comimission of Pakistan (SECP) and the Company under the chairmanship of the
Finance Minister, Government of Pakistan, whercby it has been decided that the Company's total
outstanding debt of Rs. 11.242 billion payable to SBP along with markup payable of Rs. 2.448 billion (i.e.
aggregating to Rs. 13.690 billion) shall be converted into SBP's investment in the equity of the Company
and the remaining portion of markup of Rupees 2 billion of outstanding markup as of June 30, 2014 will
be paid up by the Company immediately. The decisions of the aforesaid meeting has been communicated
to the Company by Finance Division, Government of Pakistan vide its notification No. I.1(2)IF-1/2011-
Vol-11/1104 dated July 15, 2014 and No. 1F.6(9)-1F-111/2008 dated July 24, 2014 and the Company paid
Rupees 2 billion in compliance with the directives on August 18,2014,

In view of the above. the management of the Company is confident that the shortfall against minimum
capital rcquirement is temporary and the Company will be in compliance with the minimum capital

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of the Companics Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance) and the
directives issucd by the Sccurities and Iixchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) including BSD Circular No. 04 dated February 17, 2006. Approved accounting standards
comprisc of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issucd by the International
Accounting Standards Board and Islamic FFinancial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issucd by the Institutc of
Chartered Accountants ol Pakistan as arc notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, In casc
requirements difler. the provisions of the directives issucd under the Companics Ordinance. 1984 and
directives issuced by SBP shall prevail, \ .

6



2.2

2.3

2.4

The SBP through its BSD Circular Letter No. 11 dated September 11, 2002 has deferred the applicability
of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and
International  Accounting Standard (IAS) 40, 'Investment Property' till further instructions. Further,
according to the notification ol SECP dated April 28, 2008, [FRS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
has not becn made applicable for companies cngaged in housing finance services. Accordingly, the
requirements of these standards have nol been considered in the preparation of these financial statements.
However, investments have been classificd and valued in accordance with the requircments prescribed by

Requirements ol Scction 24(20)(d) of the House Building Finance Corporation (HBFC) Act. 1952 as
amended by the HBFC (Amendment) Ordinance, 2001 and ratificd by the Board of the Company in
respect ol demand charges have been followed.

Standards, amendments and inlerprefations of approved accounting standards are effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2013:

TAS 1 ' Financial statements presentation’ has been amended effective January 01, 2013, The main change
resulting from these amendments is a requirement for entities lo group items presented in ‘Other
Comprehensive Income' (OCI) on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit and loss
subsequently reclassification adjustments. The specified changes have been made in the statement of other
comprehensive income lor the ycar,

IAS 19 Employce Bencelits (revised) which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 01. 2013 amends accounting for employces benefits. The amended IAS 19 includes the
amendments that require actuarial gains and losses to be recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income; to immediately recognize all past service costs; and to replace interest cost and expected return on
plan assets with a net interest amount that is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined
benefit lability / asset. The specilied changes has been made in these financial statements and their impact
on these financial statements has been disclosed in Note 3.8(d).

There are other new and amended standards and interpretations that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2013 but arc considered not relevant or do not bave a significant effect
on the Company’s operations and thercfore are not detailed in these {inancial statements.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are
not vet effective
The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be
effective for accounting periods on or after January 01, 2014.
=ffective date
(accounting 'periods
beginning
on or afler)

- 1AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation (Amendment) 01 January 2014
- IFRS 10 ' Consolidation Financial Statements 01 January 2014
- 1FRS 12" Disclosure ol interest in other entitics' 01 January 2014
- IFAS 3 - Profit and Loss Sharing on Deposits 01 January 2014

There arc other new and amended standards and interpretations that arc mandatory for the Company's
accounting periods beginning on or afler January 01, 2014 but arc considered not to be relevant or do not
have any signilicant c¢ffect on the Company s operations and arc thercfore not detailed in thesc financial
statements.

Basis of measurement

Thesc linancial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments
classified as held for trading and available-for-sale are measured at fair values, cxcluding investment in
associale which is carricd using cquity method and staff rctirement benefit schemes that are stated at the
present valuc of the obligation.



Accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of f{inancial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments. cstimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts ol asscts. labilitics, income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise
Judgment in application of its accounting policies. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimales are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The arcas where various assumptions and cstimates are significant to the Company’s financial statements
or where judgment was excrcised in application of accounting policics arc as follows:

Classification of investments

In classifying investments as "held-for-trading” the Company has determined securities which are acquired
with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short term market / interest rate movements.

In classifying investments as "held-to-maturity” the Company follows the guidance provided in SBP
circulars on classifying non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity. In making this judgment. the Company cvaluates ils intention and ability to hold such
investments to maturity.

The investments which are not classilicd as "held for trading” or "held to maturity” are classified as
“available for sale™. :

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Company determines that available-for-sale investments arc impairced when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or
prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Company cvaluates among other factors, the
normal volatility in share price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of
deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in
technology. and operational and financing cash flows.

Provision against non-performing advances and debt securities classified as investments

The Company regularly reviews its loan portfolio and debt securities classificd as investments to assess the
amount of non-performing loans and advances and debt sccurities and provision required there-against.
While asscssing this requirement various factors including the delinquency in the account, financial
position of the borrower, the forced sale value of securities and requirements of the Prudential Regulations
are considered.

For portfolio impairment provision on consumer advances, the Company follows the general provision
requircment set out in Prudential Regulations.

Income taxes

While making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, management looks at the
current income lax laws and the decisions of appellate authoritics on certain issucs in the past. In making
provision {or deferred taxes. estimates of the Company's [uturc taxable profits and expccted reversal of
deductible temporary differences are taken into account.

Employees refirement benefit plang

The liabilitics for employces retirement benelits are determined as per actuarial advice using the Projected
Unit Credit Mecthod. The actuarial advice involves assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of
return on asscts. [wture salary increases and future pension inercases as disclosed in note 30. Changes in
these assumptions in future years may affect the liability / assct under these plans in future years.



2.6

3.1

3.2

Opcrating assets, depreciation and amortization and residual value

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are
based on the analysis of the management of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of
assets for possiblc impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the cstimates in the future might affect
the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with a corresponding effect on
the depreciation charge and impairment.

Functional and presentation curreney

ltems included in the (inancial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements have been presented in Pakistani
Rupee, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policics applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

Bank balances
Cash and cash cquivalents

For the purpose cash flow statcment, cash and cash cquivalents include cash and balances with the SBP
and other banks in current and deposit accounts.

Cash in transit

Collection in transit as on the reporting date received from the borrowers / partners at the branches is
treated as cash in transit and included in the bank balances.

Lendings to / borrowings from financial institutions

The Company enters into transactions of borrowings (repos) from and lending (reverse repos) to financial
institutions at contracted rates for a specified period of time. Thesc ave recorded as under:

Salc under repurchase ohligations

Securities sold with a simultancous commitment (o repurchase at a specified future date (repos) continue to
be recognized in the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance with accounting
policies for investment sccuritics. The counterparty liability for amounts received under these agreements
is included in borrowings from financial institutions. The difference between sale and repurchase price is
treated as mark-up/return/interest expense and accrued over the term of the related repo agreement.

Purchase under resale obligations

Securities purchased with a corresponding commitment to rescll at a specified future date (reverse repos)
arc not recognized in the statement ol Ninancial position, as the Company does not obtain control over the
securitics. Amounts paid under these agreements are included in lendings to financial institutions. The
difference between purchase and resale price is treated as mark-up/return/interest income and accrued over
the term of the related reverse repo agreement.

Other lendings

Other fendings include term lendings and unsccured lendings to financial institutions. These arc stated net
of provision. Mark-up on such lendings is charged to profit and loss account on time proportionate basis
using clfective interest rate method exeepl mark-up on impaired/delinquent lendings, which are recognized
on receipt basis.



3.3

3.4

3.5

(a)

(b)

(c)

Other horrowings

Thesc arc recorded at the proceeds received. Mark-up on such borrowings is charged to the profit and loss
account on time proportion basis using cffective intercst mcthod.

Revenue recognition

Rentals / markup / return on regular advances and investments is recognized on time proportion basis.
Mark up / return on classificd advances and investments is recognized on receipt basis. Gains and losscs on
termination and documcentation charecs are recognized on receipt basis.

Additionally under Ghar Aasan Scheme, income is recognized on the basis of share in rental income and
share in appreciation in value of property.

Interest on housing finance under inferest bearing scheme is not recognized since July, 2000 pursuant to
the decision of the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan.

Income from sale of housing projects is recognized using stage of complction of contract.

Income on deposits and investments other than equity instruments is recognized on accrual basis.

Dividend income, except for dividend on investments in associates accounted for under equity method
{Note 3.5(d)}, is rccognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

Gain and loss on sale of investments arc recognized in the profit and loss account.

Advances
Housing finance advance
Advances arc stated nct of general and specific provisions.

The general and specific provisions arc made in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential
Regulations and other dircctives issucd by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and are charged to the profit

Non-performing advances are written ofTonly when all possible courses of action to achicve recovery have
proved unsuccessful. The Company determines write-offs in accordance with the criteria prescribed by the

Investments

Investments of the Company. other than investment in associate, arc classified as held for trading, held-to-
maturity and available for sale.

Ield for trading

Thesc arc sceurities which arc cither acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in market
prices, interest rate movements. dealer's margin or are sceurities included in a portfolio in which a pattern
of short-term profit taking exists.

Held-to-maturity

Thesc arc sceuritics with {ixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the
Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sate

These arc investments that do not fall under the "held for trading” or "held to maturity” categories.

Initial measurement

Al fregular way™ purchases and sales ol investments arc recognized on the trade date, i.c., the date that the
Company commits to purchasc or scll the asset. Regular way purchascs or sales are purchases or sales of
investments that require delivery ol asscts within the time [rame gencrally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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(d)

3.6

Investments arce initially recognized at fair value which, in the case of investments other than held-for-
trading. includes transaction costs associated with the investments.

Subsequent measurement
Held for trading

These are measured at subscquent reporting dates at fair value. Gains and losses on re-measurement are
included in the profit and loss account.

Held to maturity

These arc measurcd at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss
recognized to reflect irrccoverable amounts.

Available for sale

Quoted-sceuritics classificd as available-for-sale investments are measured at subsequent reporting dates at
fair valuc. Any surplus / deficit arising thereon is kept in a separatc account shown in the statement of
financial position below cquity and taken to the profit and loss account when actually realized upon
disposal or when the investment 1s considered to be impaired.

Unquoted cquity sccuritics arc valued at the lower of cost and break-up value. A decline in the carrying
value is charged to the profit and loss account. The break-up value of these equity securities is calculated
with reference to the net asscts of the investee company as per the latest available audited: financial
statements. Investments in other unquoted seeurities are valued at cost less impairment losses.

Provision for diminution in the valuc ol sceuritics (except term finance certificates and sukuks) is made for
impairment. il any. Provision for diminution™in the value of term finance certificates is made as per the
aging criteria prescribed by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP.

Investment in associate

Investment in associated, where the company has significant influcnce. is accounted for using equity
method of accounting whercin the Company's sharc ol underlying net assets of the investee is recognized
as the carrying amount of such investment. Dilferences between the amount previously recognized and the
amount calcutated at cach year end is recognized in the profit and loss account as share of profit or loss of
associate. Distribution rcecived out of such profits is credited to the carrying amount of investment in
associated undertaking.

Gains and losses on disposal of investments arc dealt with through the profit and loss account in the year in
which they arisc.

The carrying values of investments are reviewed for impairment at cach balance shect date. Where any
such indications exist that the carrying values excced the estimated recoverable amounts, provision for
impairment is made through the profit and loss account.
Operating fixed assets
Tangible
Property and equipment
Property and cquipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (if any).
Cost of property and cquipment consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to crection /
construction period ol qualifying assets and other dircctly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
working condition. When parts of an item of property and equipment have different uscful lives. they are
accounted for as scparale items ol property and cquipment.
Depreciation on property und cquipment is charged to income using the 'Straight Line Method' over the
uselul life of the asset at the rates mentioned in note 9.2, The residual valuces, usclul lives and depreciation
mcthod are reviewed and adjusted, i appropriate, at cach balance sheet date. Depreciation charge
commences {rom the month when the assct is available for use and continues till the month the asset is
discontinued cither through disposal or retirement.

¢
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3.7

Subscquent costs are included in the assct's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriatc, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be mcasured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the profit and loss account when incurred.

Any gain or loss on disposal of the asscts is included in the profit and loss account in the year of disposal.

Intangible

Intangible asscts having finitc usclul lile are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment
losses, il any. Intangible assels comprisc of cost of computer software and patents, which are being
amortized using the straight-line method over their useful lives as stated in note 9.3.1 Amortization is
charged from the month ol acquisition and up to the month of deletion. The useful lives and amortization
method arc reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at cach reporting date.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expense when incurred.
Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the reporting date and represents expenditure
incurred on property and cquipment in the course of construction / development. These expenditure are
transferred to relevant category of property and equipment as and when the assets become available for

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of asscts are reviewed at cach reporting date for impairment whenever cvents or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the asscts may not be recoverable. If such
indication exists. and where the carrying value exceeds the cstimated recoverable amount, assets are
written down to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less
cost to scll and value in use. The resulting impairment loss is taken to profit and loss account.

A previously rccognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the
case, the carrying amount ol the assel is incrcased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot
exceed the carryving amount that would have been determined, net ol depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognized for the assct in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit and loss account,

Taxation

Income tax cxpense compriscs of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the profit
and loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other
comprchensive income.

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of tax after taking into account
applicable tax credits. rebates and exemptions available, if any. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments, where considered necessary, relating to prior years arising [rom assessments made during the
year,

Deferved

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method on all temporary differences, at the reporting date
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for the financial reporting
purposes. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the differences are
expected to reverse, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially cnacted at the reporting
date. '

Deferred tax liabtlity is gencrally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Delerred tax assets is
recognized (o the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilized. .

12



3.8

The carrying amount of deferred tax assct is reviewed at cach balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sulficient taxable profit will be available to allow whole or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income stalement, except in the case of items credited or charged
to equity, il any. in that casc it is included in cquity.

Employce benefits
Defined benefit plan

Pension Fund

The Company operates an approved funded pension scheme for all its cmployeces who have been in full
time employment for at least 10 years. The scheme provides pension bascd on the employees’ last drawn
pensionable salary. Contributions are made to the scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendation. The
latest valuation was carricd out at December 31, 2013 by actuary using the ‘Projected Unit Credit’
actuarial cost method, by applying the following significant assumptions, for actuarial valuation of the
scheme:

2013 2012
Per annum  Per annum

Discount rate 13.00% 11.50%
Expected rate ol return on investments/plan assets 13.00% 11.50%
Expected rate of increase in salary : 13.00% 10.50%
Pension increase rale 10.50% 9.00%

Post retirement medical henclits
The Company provides post retirement medical facility to an employec in the following cvents:

- Retirement
- Death/disability during or after service

- Early rctirement from service

The Company's post retirement medical bencefits' structure is as follows:

Exccutives / officers their spouse and dependent children Entitlement

- for hospitalization One gross pension

- for consultation/pathological test cte. One gross pension

- for cost of medicine One gross pension
Clerical staff Entittement

- for hospitalization One gross pension

- for consultation/pathological test cle. One gross pension

- for cost of medicine Two gross pension
Non-clerical staff Entitlement

- for hospitalization Onc and half gross pension
- for consultation/pathological test cle. Onc and half gross pension
- for cost of medicine Thrce gross pension

Actuarial valuation of the scheme is carricd out every year and the latest valuation was carried out at
December 31, 2013 using ‘Projected Unit Credit’ actuarial cost method. Discount rate of 13% (2012:
11.5%) is used by the actuary for the valuation,

13



d.

The actuarial gains / losses on re-mcasurement of defined benefit obligations are recognized in the other
comprehensive income.

Defined contribution plan

The Company also opcrates an approved non-contributory Provident Fund scheme for all its employces.
Contributions arc madc to the FFund by the employees at the rate of 12 % of their basic salaries in
accordance with the Fund's rules.

Employces’ compensated absences

Employces of the Company are entitled to carry forward and accumulate their unavailed leaves. The rules
of the lcave encashment scheme state that the employee shall be entitled to get 50% of his balance subject
to maximum of 180 days i.c. he is allowed to accumulate his balance upto 365 days. The employees can
avail their leave balance in excess of 365 days at any time as the excess balance will not be encashed at
retirement and will be lapsed. The Company provides for employees compensated absences on the basis of
actuarial valuation in accordance with the requirements of IAS-19. Actuarial valuation of the scheme is
carricd out after every year and the latest valuation was carried out at December 31, 2013,

Change in accounting policy - defined benefit plan

Previously, the portion of actuarial gains or losses was recognized if the net cumulative unrecognized
actuarial gains or losscs at the end of the previous year exceeded the "corridor" which was defined as the

- 10% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation at that date (before deducting plan assets)

- 10% of the fair value ol the plan assets at that date.

According to new policy actuarial gains and losses arc recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) in
the periods in which they occur. Amounts recorded in the profit and loss account are limited to current and
pasl scrvice costs. gains or losses on scttlements, and net interest income (expense). All other changes in
the net defined benefit obligation are recognized directly in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent recycling through the profit and loss account.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the
requirements ol TAS 8, “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ and
comparative figures have been restated. The cffect of the change in accounting policy on the current and
prior periods linancial statements have been summarized below:

2012 2011
Rupees in '000
Effect on Statement of Financial Position

Decrease in other asscts

- 85,113
Increase in delerred lax assct 107,603 342,088
Increase in other liabilities 1241.037 905,056
Increase in accumulated loss 1150217 664.054
Increasc in statulory reverse 15.973 15.973
Effect on profit and loss account
Decrease in administrative expenses 65.422 79.862
Decrcasce in SBP share of oss on credit lines (445) )
(Decrease) / increase in (loss) 7/ profit after tax (64.977) 79,862
(Decrcase) / increase in (loss) / carnings per share (0.22) 027
14



3.9

3.10

3.12

3.13

3.14

Forcign cuvrency transactions and translations

Monctary asscts and labilitics in forcign currency are translated into Rupees at the applicable rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Forcign currency transactions during the year are translated into
Pakistani Rupec applying the exchange rate at the date of respective transactions. Gains and losses on
translation are included in profit and loss account currently.

Financial instruments

Financial asscts and [iabilities

Financial instruments carried on the stalement of financial position include cash and bank balances,
lending’s to financial institutions, investments, advances, certain receivables, borrowings from financial
institutions. deposits and certain other liabilities. The particular recognition methods adopted for
significant linancial asscts and financial labilitics are disclosed in the individual policy statements
assaciated with them. Financial assets are de-recognized when the contractual right to future cash flows
from the assct expire or is transferred along with the risk and reward of the asset. Financial liabilities are
de-recognized when obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelied or expired. Any gain or
loss an de-recognition of the financial asscts and liabilities is recognized in the profit and loss account of
Off setting

Financial asscts and financial liabilitics are only offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements when there is a lcgally cnforccable right to set-off the recognized amount and the Company
intends either to scttle on a nel basis, or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultancously.
Income and expensc items ol such assets and liabilities are also off-sct and the net amount is reported in

Provisions

Provisions arc recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to scttle the obligation and a reliable
estimatc of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance shect date and are adjusted to
reflect the current best estimatc.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs specific to a significant addition of a project during its construction / erection period is
capitalized. Other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred.

larnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss, as the casc may be, attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the weighted
average number ol ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
profit attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the cffects ol all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any. The Company does not account
for the elfect of potential ordinary shares while calculating dilutive loss per share in accordance with the

Dividends and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the yecar in which these arc approved, except
appropriations required by the law, which are recorded in the period to which they pertain.

Demand charges

Demand charges (penaltics) on late payment by the partners arc credited to "Deferred Credit” account. This
amount is utilized for charity purposces after netting of recovery charges as approved by the Board.



4.1

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

2013 2012

Note Rupees in '000
CASIT AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
State Bank of Pakistan
lLocal currency current account 4.1 80,460 63,841
National Bank of Pakistan |
Local currency deposit account 104 102
80,564 63,943

This represents the amount required to be maintained by the Company in accordance with the SBP's
regulations and carrics markup @ 0% (2012: 0%).

BALANCES WITIT OTHER BANKS

In Pakistan - Local currency

In transit 26,495 8,550
On deposit accounts 5.1 200,417 159,760
226912 168,310

These bank accounts carry mark-up at rates ranging from 6% to 10.75% (2012: 6% to 9.25%) per annum,

LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Letters of placement 6.1 100,000 -
Repurchasc agreement lending (Reverse Repo) 6.2 2,339,321 181,038
2,439,321 181,038

Letters of placement

Trust Investment Bank Limited (TIBL) 6.1.1 5,909 5,909
First Dawood Investment Bank Limited (IFDIBL) 6.1.2 75,000 75,000
NIB Bank Limited (NI13) 6.1.3 100,000 -
180,909 80,909
Less: Provision for placement with T181, and FDIBL 6.1.4 (80,909) (80.909)
100,000 -

This represents clean placement made on November 17, 2008 for a period of 14 days at the mark up rate of
28% per annum. The transaction remained unsettled at maturity and rescheduling have been made twice,
whereas, TIBL complied with the later arrangement till June 2011, During the year, mark-up accrued upto
February 15, 2012 has been received. The Company has filed suit against TIBL in the banking court for
the recovery of outstanding dues. The Company on prudent basis has maintained 100% provision against
outstanding receivable as at December 31, 2013,

This represents clean placement made on September 12, 2008 for a period of 94 days at the mark-up rate
of 17%. The transaction remained unsettied al maturity and consequently, the Company had filed suit
against FDIBL for recovery of outstanding principal and obtained a decree on November 05, 2010, FDIBL
has filed appeal against the judgment. As on December 31, 2013 the casc is under cxecution process.
FHowever, the Company on prudent basis has made provision of full outstanding amount.

This represent clean placement made on December 12, 2013 for a period of 42 days at the mark-up rate of
10% and will mature on January 23, 2014,
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6.1.4

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

6.2.3

2013 2012
Rupees in '000
Particulars of provision

Opening balance 80,909 76,477
Provision made during the year - 4,432
Closing balancc 80.909 20.909

Repurchase agreement lending (Reverse Repo)

Pak Oman Investment Company Limiled 985,739 181,038

NIB Bank Limited 967,734 -

Pak Libya Holding Company (private) Limited 385,848 -
2,339,321 181,038

These represent reverse repo tending at mark-up ranging from 9.77 to 9.85% (2012: 9.25%) per annum and
it will mature upto February 13,2014,

Particulars of lending

In local currency . 2,339,321 181,038
In forcign currency - -
2,339,321 181,038
Sccurities held as collateral against lendings to financial institutions
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Held Further teld Further
by given as by given as
Company collateral Total Company collateral Total
Rupees in "004"
Pakistan Investment Bonds 1,953,473 - 1,953,473 - - -
Market Treasury Bills 385,848 - 385,848 181,038 - 181,038
2,339,321 - 2,339,321 181,038 - 181,038
17
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7.2

7.2.1

7.2.2

7.3

Note Rupeces in '000
Investments by segments
Federal Government seeurities
Market treasury bills 7.2.1 7,906,070 8.681,041
Fully paid up ordinary shares
Unlisted companics 722 500 500
Term finance certificates, debentures,
bonds and participation term certificates
Unlisted sukuk bonds 7.3 39,360 86,200
Listed sukuk bonds 7.3 63,591 72.027
Term finance certificates 7.4 124,096 148,723
Other investments
Term deposit receipts 7.5 2,344 2,344
Certificates of investment - Bankers Equity Limited (BEL) 7.6 67,500 101,250
Investment in an associate 7.8 35,506 35,5006
Total investment at cost 8,238,967 9,127,591
Less: Provision for diminution in valuc of investment 7.10 (163,455) (240.771) -
LLess: Impairment in associate - Takalul Pakistan Limited (35,506) (35,506)
Investments (net of provisions) 8,040,006 8,851,314
(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of available for sale sccurities (6,792) 4,110
Total investments 8,033,214 8,855,424

2013

2012

Market treasury bills arc cligible for discounting with the State Bank of Pakistan, These carry mark up from
9.32% 10 9.96% (2012: 9.28% to [1.88%) and will mature upto March 20, 2014.

These represent investment in 66,125 (2012: 66,125) ordinary shares of Rs.10 cach in Resourcc and
Engincering Management Corporation Limited. Full provision has been made against this investment.

Particulars of investment in sukuk bonds

Name of issuer Rating Marlkup Repayme Total nominal valuc
rate nt
2013 2012
Rupees in '000

Fden Housing Limited 7.3.1 D 3 months Quarterly 39,360 §6.200
40,000 (2012 40.000) units K‘BOROP‘“S
Face value: Rs. 984 cach 3:00%
(2012: Rs. 2,155) Maturity
2015
Chief Exccutive Officer:
Mr. Muhammad Amjad
Maple Leat Cement Factory Limited
(MLCFL)
15,562 (2012: 15,562) units 732 BB/B 3 months Quarterly 63,591 72,027
FFace valuc: Rs. 4.086 cach KlBO{E{ plus
(2012: Rs. 4.628) Maturity %
date: December 03, 2018
Chicef Executive Officer:
Mr. Tariq Sayeed Saigol
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7.3.1

7.3.2

7.4

7.6

According to the original terms of repayment. these sukuk bonds were (o be repaid in eight half yearly
instaliments starting from June 2009 and maturing upto December 2012 at markup of six months KIBOR
plus 2.50%.

Eden Housing Limited (EFL) paid two installments of Rs. 25 million cach and then defaulted the repayment.
On June 30. 2010. EI1L entered into a restructuring arrangement according to which outstanding principal of
Rs. 150 million will be repaid on quarterly basis in the ratio of 10%, 25%, 30% and 35% in first, second,
third and fourth year. respectively, with markup of KIBOR plus 2.5% for the first three years and KIBOR
plus 3% in fourth year. EIL, has complied the restructured arrangement till the reporting date. However, on
prudent basis. the Company has made provision of 75% of the outstanding principal amount.

According to the original terms of repayment, this sukuk was to be repaid in eight equal half yearly
installments at markup of six months KIBOR plus 1.70%, principal repayment starting from June 2009 and
maturing upto December 2013,

MLCFL paid markup till May 2009 and defaulted the repayment of both principal and markup. On February
2010, MLCFL entered into a restructuring arrangement with the Company according to which Rs. 2.94
million of the outstanding markup from June 2009 to November 2009 has been paid and sukuk bonds have
been issucd lor the remaining markup of Rs. 2.81 million. According lo the restructuring agreement, new
issued sukuk bonds arc repayable in bullet in two years at markup of three months KIBOR plus 1%,
however, markup payment would be made on quarterly basis. The principal amount of Rs. 75 million is
payable in thirty six quarterly installments starting from March 2010 till December 2018.

Mark up from December 2009 o February 2011 aggregating to Rs. 12.634 million was not recognized in the
books of account being doubtiul of recovery. However, upon restructuring such amount was agreed to be
converted into markup [ree debt except for token markup of 0.50% payable with installment. This markup
frec debt is to be paid in 24 cqual quarterly installments starting from March 2012 till December 2017. The
Company has also not accounted for this markup free debt in its books of account by crediting the income
because of doubts on cventual recovery, and is accordingly kept in memorandum accounts. The recoveries
actually made therc-against are recoghized as income on receipt basis. Markup from March to June 2011
amounting to Rs. 5.51 million was rcceivable upto September 2011, However, Rs. 3.32 million were
received and the remaining balance of Rs. 2.19 million was deferred till December 2012. MLCFL paid all
due markup as per restructuring, HBIFCL, liled a suit against AMZ Asset and Income Fund to recover the loss
on acquisition of this sukuk amounting Rs. 15.157 million in the Banking Court. The management, on
prudent basis. has provided [ull outstanding original principal amount against these sukuks.

These represent investment in 30,000 units of Rs. 5,000 cach in Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) of Pak
Libya Holding Company (Private) Limited costing Rs. 124.096 million having maturity on Fcbruary 07,
2016 and fair value of Rs. 124.634 million. These TFCs carry mark up at 6 months KIBOR plus 1.60% per
annum payable semi annually whercas principal is payable semi annually commencing from August 07,
2013. The credit rating of company is AA. The Deputy Managing Dircctor of the Company is Mr. Khald
S.T. Benrjoba.

2013 2012
Particulars of term deposit receipts (TDRs) Note Rupees in "000
Investment Bank
Asset Investment Bank Timited 2,344 2,344

This represents balance of placement in certificates of investment (COls) of Rs. 200 million for three years
and Rs. 25 million lor three months in 1996 and 1998 respectively (aggregately Rs. 225 million). BEL
defaulted the repayment and went under liquidation on April 18, 2001 and claims of BIEL were placed before
Honourable IHigh Court of Sindh. Conscquently, the Company had made provision of full amount. Upto
December 31. 2013, the Company received Rs. 157.5 million (70%) of the invested amount on the directive
of the Honorable Figh Court of Sindh.
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7.7

7.8

7.8.1

7.9

2013 2012
Rupees in '000 Rupees in '000
Amount Rating Amount Rating
Quality of Available for Safe Securities
Scc'urilics (At market value)
Market Treasury Billg 7,899,278 Sovcreign 8,685,151 Sovereign
Sukuks
Listed sukuks - Maple Leal” Cement
Factory Limited - BB/B - BB/B
Unlisted ordinary shares
Resource and Lngincering Management
Corporation Limited - Unrated - Unrated
Total 7,899,278 8,685,151
2013 2012
Investment in associate - Takaful Pakistan Limited Company Restated
Number of shares held 8.700,000 8,700,000
Cost of investment - Rupeces in '000 87,000 87,000
Assets - Rupcees in '000 519,153 498,099
Liabilities - Rupees in '000 357,109 323,125
Revenue - Rupees in "000 175,275 151,066
Profit after tax - Rupeces in '000 15,527 8,448
Percentage of investment 29% 29%
Break up valuc per share - Rupees 5.23 4.78

Latest available financial statements
Name ol Chiel lixccutive

Place of incorporation

Principal business

Carrying value of investment in an associate under cquity method
Carrying valuc ol investment at January 01

Share in results of an associate before taxation

Sharc in charge lor taxation

Less: Impairment
Carrying valuc of investment at December 31

Particulars of provision
Opening balance
Reversal during the vear
Closing balance

Dec 31,2013  Dec 31.2012

Dr. Mumtaz Dr. Mumtaz
A. Hashmi A. Hashmi
(Acting CEQ) (Acting CEO)

Pakistan

Takaful business

2013 2012
Rupees in '000

240,771 309.666
(77,316) (68,895)
163,455 240,771
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2013 2012
7.10 Particulars of provision in respect of type and segment Rupees in '000

Available-for-sale sceuritics

Unlisted ordinary shares 500 500
Listed sukuks - Maple Leal” Cement Factory Limited _ 63,591 72,027

Field-to-maturity sceuritics

Term deposit receipts - Asset Investment Bank Limited 2,344 2,344
Unlisted sukuks - 2den Housing Limited 29,520 64,650
Certificates ol investment (COIs) - Bankers Equity Limited 67,500 101,250

163,455 240,771

8. ADVANCES - Net

In Pakistan - Local carrency

Rental Sharing Schemes 8§.2& 83 1,826,105 2,272,660

Interest Bearing Schemes 8.4 107,820 109,534
Ghar Aasan Scheme 8.5 4,834,697 5,660,990
Pakistan Housing Authority (P11A) 8.6 218,143 218,143
Gawadar Employces Co-operative FHousing Society (GECHS) 8.7 20,182 24,388
Shandar Ghar Scheme 8.8 1,214,709 1,694 817
Unearned income " (635,736) (900,904)
578,973 793913
Financing facility for Small Builders 8.9 11,167 21,196
Ghar Aasan I'lexi Scheme $.10 4,590,648 3,630,053
Bisma & Saima Projects 8.11 29,091 -
Housing finance to employees $.12 507,612 518,943
Partners' dcath claims (133,357) (124,421)
Transitory district bank accounts - net 8.13 (43,541) (12,568)
Advances - gross 12,547,540 13.112.831

Provision for non-performing advances

Specific provision

Rental Sharing Schemes 1,785,740 2,177,479
Interest Bearing Schemes 107,820 109,534
Ghar Aasan Scheme 554,249 609,328
Gawadar Emplovees Co-operative Housing Socicty 20,182 24388
Shandar Ghar Scheme 86,953 98,782
Financing Facility lor Small Builders 1,725 2,544
Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme 199,730 124,050
General provision 8.14 90,990 79,360

2,847,389 3,225,465
Advances - net of provision 9,700,151 9,887,366

8.1  Particulars of advances (Gross)

Short term (up 10 one year) 3,221,521 3,400,153
Long term (over one vear) 9,326,019 9,712,678
12,547,540 13,112,831
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8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

This represents advances under Profit & Loss Sharing Scheme, Simplificd Scheme, New Simplified Scheme
(NSS), Gothabad Scheme and loan 1o Brecast Industries (Pvt.) Limited. No additional disbursement of
advance under these schemes has been made since 2000. Advances under NSS have been provided upto 96%
(2012 :97%) ol the gross advance whereas advances under rest of the schemes are Fully provided.

On November 23. 2012, the Exccutive Commiltee approved special relief package to mitigate the financial
hardships of the borrowers. As per the relief package, which was valid upto March 31, 2013, on payment of
the entirc principal amount, insurance premiwm, legal / publication charges and 20 percent of demand
charges, partners arc entitled for waiver of outstanding mark-up and remaining portion of demand charges.

No new disbursement has been made under this scheme since the year 1979. In pursuance of the decision of
the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Company has not accrued interest on these advances since
July 01, 2000. All advances under this category has been classified as "Loss™ and fully provided.

This scheme was bascd on Diminishing Musharaka for construction, purchase of houses and replacement of
existing housing advance obtained by applicants from another financial institutions - Balance Transfer
Facility (BTF) with maximum financing limit of Rs. 7.5 million. This advance is repayable by the partners in
36 to 240 monthly installments. The net annual rental income is 5% of the total assessed cost of the house,
subject to upward revision of annual rent on cumulative basis at 25% after every 3 years. For disbursements
after May 26, 2008. constant ncl annual rental income of 15.5% is charged on daily product basis on the
value of oulstanding units. In addition, the Company sharcs appreciation in the value of the house at rates
ranging between 2.5% to 12.5% per annum assessed for various localitics. New disbursement under this
scheme has been discontinued from February 11, 2009. Provision has been made in accordance with the
prudential rcgulations.

Ministry of Finance. Government of Pakistan (Mol") paid Rs. 44 million to the Company during 2009 and
the remaining amount ol Rs. 174.14 million during the year ended December 31, 2010 against outstanding
amount of advance to PHA as the transaction was guarantced by the Federal Government Guarantee.
However, Mol" through its letter No. 1©.10(4)[F-11/2000-594 dated April 17, 2010 instructed Ministry of
Housing & Works (Mol l&W) to pay this amount to the Company on behalfl of PHA and necessary provision
in this regard should be made in the Federal Budget. Mot in its letter further advised that the amount of Rs.
218.14 paid to the Company be utilized lor increase in the paid up capital. Accordingly, this amount has
been disclosed as ““Advance against issuc of capital” in these financial statements. Based upon MoF's
guarantec to pay the outstanding balance, no provision has been made against thesc advances,

As per the arrangement Gawader Employees' Co-operative Housing Sociely (GECHS) is required to adjust
the principal amount ol advance of Rs. 47.50 million within thirty threc months from December 26, 2006
through transfer of balance in cach individual casc of the allottecs of house under Ghar Aasan Scheme and
under Ghar Aasan I'lext Scheme after completion and handing over possession of houses. Until the transfer
of advances to individuals, GIECHS shall pay profit @ 13% per annum. Upto December 31, 2013, advances
of Rs. 27.318 million (2012 : Rs. 23.217 million), were transferred to 82 (2012 : 73) individual cases: i.e., 67
cases (2012: 60) under Ghar Aasan Scheme, and 15 cases (2012: 13) under Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme
amounting to Rs. 23115 million (2012: 19,925 million) and Rs. 5.377 million (2012: 3.292 million)
respectively.

Final profit and loss sharing will be subject to final settiement of accounts which shall be made within three
months of the completion of the project which will be audited by the person authorized by the Company.
The advance is sccured against morteage of land. Fowever, the Company has made provision of full amount
on prudent basis.
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8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

8.14

Advances under Shandar Ghar Scheme for renovation of houses only with maximum financing limit of Rs.
2.5 million arc bascd on Murabaha approved by the Board of Directors on January 20, 2004 . The advance is
repayable by the partners in 12 lo 120 monthly installments, The Murahaba profit varies from 8% to 13.5%
(2012 : 8% Lo 13.3%) per annum. New disbursement under this scheme has been discontinued from February
11,2009, Provision has been made in accordance with the prudential regulations,

Advances under I"inance Facility for Small Builders' for construction of individual houses and apartments for
sale to thc general public with maximum financing limit of Rs. 7.5 million is based on Musharaka financing
approved by the Board of Dircclors in August 2007. This advance is for a period of 12 to 18 months,
extendable for further 3 months. to be repaid at the end of the tenor along with the profit ranging from 13%
to 18% (2012 : 13% to 18%) per annum, or is transferable to the buyer of the house/apartment under Ghar
Aasan Scheme. New disbursement under this scheme has been discontinued from November 17, 2009.
Provision has been made in accordance with the prudential regulations.

Advances under Ghar Aasan Flexi Scheme for construction, renovation and purchase of house and
replacement of existing housing lacility — Balance Trans(er Facilities (BTF) with maximum financing limit
of Rs. 10 million is bascd on Diminishing Musharaka. This advance is repayable by the partners in 36 to 240
monthly installments. The rental income for salaried person and business person is one year KIBOR with a
spread of 3.25% and 3.50% (2012: 3.25% and 3.50%) respectively per annum,

There arc two investiments plans under this scheme; variable installment plan and fixed investment plan.
New disbursement under variable installment plan has been discontinued effective from July 27. 2009.
Provision has been made in accordance with the prudential regulations.

Advances under 'Saima and Bisma Project’ for construction of individual houses and apartments with
maximum financing limit ol Rs. 10 million is based on Musharaka financing. This advance is for a period 12
to 18 months and profit is calculated on the basis of 2 years fixed KIBOR rate. The payment of installments
is commenced [rom the next month ol the completion of construction of houses and apartments.

Housing advance is given to employees as per the terms of employment for purchase of land, renovation or
construction of houses. at concessional rates. These advances are sccured against the equitable mortgage of
the property.

This net balance mainly includes unpresented cheques of disbursements and unidentified collections in bank
accounts al district and zonal offices.

General provision against advances has been determined in accordance with the requirements of Prudential
Regulations (R-4) issucd by the State Bank of Pakistan on regular portfolio of consumer financing.
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8.15.2

8.15.3

8.16

Non-performing advances are classilicd and disclosed in substandard. doubtful and loss category based on
number of installments outstanding from the customers. The management is of the view that this is the
appropriate method for ascertaining classification of advances.

The SBP vide BSD Circular No, 10 0’2009 dated Oclober 20, 2009 had allowed banks/DFIs to avail benefit of
forced sales value of collaterals mortgaged with them while determining provisioning requirement against non-
performing [inancing. Further. SBP vide BSD Circular No.1 of 2011 dated -October 21, 2011 made certain
amendments in the Prudential Regulations for Consumer Financing with respeet to allowing additional benefit of
lorced sales value (FSV)Y of mortgage propertics held as collateral against housing linances. According (o the
said circular. the impact on prolitability duc to availing TSV benelit shall not be available for payment of cash
dividend or stock dividend. As at December 31. 2013 the Company has availed benefit of forced sales value
amounting to Rs. 2,397 million (2012: Rs. 2,707 million). Had FSV benclit of BSD Circular No.1 ol 2011 not
been taken. prolit for the vear betore taxation would have been decrcased by Rs. 2,397 million.

2013 2012
Rupees in 000

Particulars of write offs

Against provisions 712 5.000
Dircctly charged to protitand loss account - -
712 3,000
Write offs Rs. 300.000 and above - 630
Write ofTs below Rs. 300.000 712 4,370
712 5,000

Particulars of loan and advances to Directors, Associated Companies, clc.

Debts due by directors. exceutives or other officers ol the Company or any of them cither severally or jointly
with any other persons: -

2013 2012
Rupees in ‘000
Balance at beginning of year 624,832 605.382
Loans granted during the vear 143,471 121.9306
Repayments 7 adjusiments (109.754) (102,486)
Balance at end of vear 658,549 624.832

There were no debts given to any companics or [irms in which the directors of the Company arc interested as
directors. partners or in casce ol private companics. as members during the ycar.

\
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23

2012

Note Rupees in "000
9. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress 9.1 245501 144301
Propenty and cquipmen 9.2 96,536 116,236
Intangible asscets 93 2363 2,963
. 344,400 263,500
9.1 Capital work-in-progress
Civil works 244 886 144.064
Soltware designing and development 615 237
245,501 144 301
9.2 Property & cquipment
Irechold  Office  Fureniture  Electrical Office  Computer Motor Total
Jang prenuses and installations equipment equipment  vehicles
fixtures
As at December 31, 2011
Cost 11.640 80.948 80.286 42,572 41.943 111,031 61.809 430229
Accumulaled Depreciation - (18.046)  (28.879) (24,230) (26.479)  (107,683) (59.683) (295.000)
Net book value 11.640 32.902 51,407 18,342 15.464 3.348 2.126 135229
Year ended December 31,2012
Opening net book value 11.640 32902 51,407 18,342 15.464 3,348 2,126 135,229
Additions - - - A 1.307 4435 - 5,795
Disposals
Cost - - - - 47 (63) (3,927) (4,037)
Depreciation - - - - 34 36 3,379 3,449
- - - - (13) (27) (548) (588)
Adjustments (9.2.1)
Cost - - - - - - (A4) (44)
Depreciation - - - - - - (116) (116)
f P p - - - (160) (160)
Deprecration Charge - (4.047) (7.899) (2,958) (5.058) (3.512) (586) (24.040)
Closing net book value 11,640 28.855 43,552 15393 11,720 4,244 832 116,236
As at December 31,2012
Cosl 11.610 80.948 80.330 42,581 43.203 115,403 57.838 431.943
Accumulated Depreciation . (52.093)  (36,778) (27.188%)  (31.483) (i11,159) (57.006) (315.707)
Net book value 11.640 28.855 43,552 15393 11,720 4,244 832 116,236
Year ended December 31,2013
Opening net book value 11,640 28.855 43,552 15393 11,720 4,244 832 116.236
Additions - - 419 - 578 2.096 3.093
Disposals
Cosl - - - - (356) - (2,300) (2,656)
Depreciation - - - - 356 - 2,300 2,656
Adjustment (9.2.1) - - - - - (13 - (13)
Depreciation Charge - (1.047) (7.779) (2.959) (4.680) (2.885) (430) (22.780)
Closing net book value 11,640 24 808 36,192 12,434 7618 3,442 402 96,536
As at December 31, 2013 .
Cost 11,640 80.948 80.749 42,581 43,425 117,486 55.538 432367
Accumulated Depreciation - (56.1:10)  (44.557) (30,147 35.807)  (114,044) (55.136) (335,831)
Net book value 11,60 24,808 36,192 12.434 'l7,6l8 3,442 402 96,536
Annual rate ol
depreciation (%) - 3 10 10 15-33.33 33.33 20
9.2.1 This represents adjustments m order 1o reconetle asscls as per subsidiary und general ledger.
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9.2.2 Disposal ol operating fixed asscls

Particulars

Items having cost less than
ounc million rupces or book
value less than two hundred
and fifty thousand rupees
Office equipment

Motor Vehicles
- Honda CD 70 - 1.H1. 5191

- Honda CD 70 - SGID 9038
- Honda CD 70 - I.OM 1673
- Honda CID 70 - LOM 1675
- Honda CD 70 - L.LOQ 9072
- Honda CID> 70 - 1.OQ 9074
- Honda CD 70 - JGA 924)
- Honda CI> 70 - 1.OW 1208
- Honda CD 70 - 1.OY 3164
- Suzuki Potohar - 1.OJ 9406
- Suzuki Potohar - 1DG 6478
- Suzuki Potohar - M1 8510
- Suzuki Alto Vxr - GA 009§
- Suzuki Potohar - 1LOZ 9541
- Yamaha YB3 100 - FDYZ. 6593
- Yamaha YB100 - I'DZ 6598
- Yamaha YB 100 ~ RIY 5187

2013

2012

Cost l:l)f)[k Sale G'ain on Modc of Particular of buyers
value proceeds  disposal  disposal
I Rupces in "000 ~------
356 - 86 86 Scttlement LEx-employee
30 - 9 9 Auction  Mr. Khan Muhammad
30 - 11 Il Auction Mr. Gul Zameen Khan
30 - 16 16 Auction  Mr. Tarig Mehmood
30 - 11 Il Auction Mr. Gul Zameen Khan
38 - 13 I3 Auction  Mr, Gul Zameen Khan
38 - 13 13 Auction  Mr. Gul Zameen Khan
38 - 11 11 Auction  Mr. Gul Zameen Khan
47 - I3 I3 Auction  Mr. Gul Zamcen Khan
43 - 13 13 Auction  Mr. Gul Zameen Khan
210 - 182 182  Auction  Mr. Naveed Rauf
436 - 309 309  Auction  Mr. M. Rafiq Khan
499 - 419 419 Auction  Mr. Akhlag Ahmed
325 - 2063 263 Auction  Mr. Gul Zameen Khan
293 - 218 218 Auction  Mr. Naveed Raufl
71 - 9 9 Auction  Mr. Gul Zamcen Khan
71 - 9 9  Auction  Mr. Gul Zameen Khan
71 - 20 20 Auction  Mr. Gul Zameen Khan
2.656 - 1,625 1',(;'25
4.037 588 5,201 4,013
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9.3

9.3.1

10,

1.1

10.1.1

1.2

10.3

2013 2012

Note Rupees in '000
Intangibles
Net carrying value
Balance at beginming ol the vear 2.963 1.833
Additions at cost 30 2,152
Adjustments - (13}
Amorlization charge for the vear 93.1 (630) (1,009)
Balance at end of vear 2,363 2,963
Gross carrying value
Cost 9.581 9.551
Accumulated amortization (7.218) (6,588)
Net book value 2,363 2,963
The cost s heing immortized over a period of 3 vears.
Restated Restated
2013 2012 2011
Note  <--u--- Rupees in '000-- - - - -~

OTHER ASSETS
Income/mark-up acerued i focal currency
Investments ' 7,105 10.694 14.482
Advances 32.816 53.650 21512
Advance for purchase of Tand - housing projects 10.1 50,469 50.470 50.470
Advances. deposits. advance rent and other prepayments 157,461 110,753 109.760
Advance Financial Reliel to Employees 89,789 43.831 -
Advance axation (pavments less provisions) 10.2 201,311 262.989 79.255
Other receivable agninst advances 18,414 21,764 19.499
Assets acquived from Pakistan Refugees Rehabilitation
Finance Corporation (PRRICY 10.3 - i -

557,365 554.151 294.978
Less: Provision held agamnst other asscts 10.1.1 (50.470) (50,470) (50,470)

506,895 503,681 244,508

It represents an advance pavment of 23% ol the cost of two picces of land measuring 163 acres situated in Gawadar made in
2007 The Company intended to construct low cost houses on this land to promote affordable housing facilitics to low mcome
groups ol the residents ol Gawvadar However, there has been no further development in this regard during the last five years and
the chances of obtaiming these plots ol land are remote, therefore the management on prudent basis, has made provision against
doubtlul recovery ol this amount. ‘

Particulars of provision against other assets

Balance at beginning ol the year 50.470 50470 -
Charge for the vear - - 50,470
Balance at end of the year 50,470 50,470 50,470

This include advance tax of Rs. 461.661 (2012: Rs. 418.422) million which is net off with the provision for tax of Rs. 260.35
(2012: Rs. 135433 million, '

As directed vide SRO A99CH/RO daed May 13, 1980 by Finance Division - Government of Pakistan. the Company (formerly

HBEC) ok over assets and labilitics of PRREC. Further, as per the directive of the Government of Pakistan all asscts and
liabilitics arc shown distinetively as below, however the Company docs nol have any controf over these assets and habilitics.
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11,1

Note

Pakistan Refugees Rehabilitation Finance Company Assefs

Assets

IFixed asscts

Cn5h and bank balances
Investments

Loans and advances
Inter-centre adjusument
Other reccivables
Sundry debtors

Advanees, deposits and prepayments

Provision lor bad and doubtiul debts

Liabilities
Sundry creditors
Accrued expenses
Return on capital

Other labilities

Net assets
REPRESENTED BY
Capital

Accumulated toss

BORROWINGS
In Pakistan - local currencey

Outside Pakistan - forcign currency

Detail of borrowings

Secured

Borrowings {rom State Bank of Pakistan - PLS credit lines

Sukuk bonds

1110

112

203

2012

Rupees in '000

| 1
518 518
253 253
16.583 16,583
2432 2432
1,992 1,992
200 200
227 227
22,206 22,206
(2.579) (2,579)
19,627 19.627
93 93
38 38
7371 7371
129 129
7.631 7,631
11,996 11,996
16.000 16.000
(4.004) (4.004)
11,996 11.996
11,392,300 11.695.300

11,392,300

11,695,300

11.242.300
150.000

11,242.300
453,000

11.392.300

11,695.300

The credit lines from SBI ave sceured by certificates issued by the Company under House Building Finanee Corporation (Issuc
and Redemption of Certilicates) Rules, 1982 that are puaranteed by the Government of Pakistan (Gol®).

The eredit Jines are repavable as follows:

Amount of credit

Credit line number lines Repayment due on Status
Rupees in "000
58 1,400,000 June 25. 2006 Due
39 1.833.000  Scptember 07, 2007 Duc
60 1.850,000  June 30, 2008 Due
6 2,406,000 August 08, 2008 Duc
62 2.200.000 November 10, 2010 Duc
63 1,053,500 July 12,2011 Due
6l 500.000  Fcbruary 26, 2012 Due
11.242.300
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11.1.2

11.1.2.1

As per the above schedule. credit Tine Nos. 38 to 64 were payable on on respective repaymient datc but were not paid. In
pursuance of Company's request. the SBP through its letter no. SMED Refinance 900/06-2071 dated September 02. 2006
advised the Company 1o repay the eredit lines as per the schedule and claimed markup @ 9.5% for utilization of the said amount
alter the due date tll the date of their payment. As at the reporting date, negotiation with SBP for rescheduling ol the borrowing
and waiver of mark-up were mprocess. However, as a matter of prudence, the management has made accrual of entire amount of
markup on overdue credit Tines e 9.53% per annum. Morefully explained in Note 1.1, subsequent to period end. it has been
decided between the represematives o SBP. SECE and the Company to convert the Company's total outstanding debt of Rupees
11.242 billion pavable adong with markup pavable of Rupees 2.448 billion (aggregately Rupees 13.69 billion) in the equity of the
Company

2013 2012

Sukuk certificates - Secured Rupees in '000

Balance as at lanuary 01 453.000 750.000
Redemption during the vear (303.000) (297.000)
Closing balance as i December 31 150,000 453,000
Redemptions

Not later than one vear 150,000 303,000
Fater than one vear and Tess than live vears - 150,000
Balance as at December 31 150,000 453,000

Sukuk certificates - Secured

Sukuk certificates represents three million certificates issucd to various banks and other financial institutions under musharaka
arrangement. The face value of cach Sukuk certificaie is Rs. 5,000. These eertificates arc sccured against {irst charge created by
way ol hypothecation over specific assets wilh 23% sceurity margin and arc subjcet o mark-up ratc of average six months
KIBOR plus 1% per amium, Rensals including redemption of principal are payable on six monthly basis between November 2009
1o May 2014,

Trustee
In order o protect the interest of the certificate holders, a non-banking finance company (First Dawood [nvestment Bank

Limited) has been appointed as a trustee under the trust deed dated April F1. 2008, In case the Campany delaults on any of its
obligation. the wrusice may enforee the Company's obligation in accordance with the terms of the trust decd.

Restated Restated
2013 2012 2011

Note Rupees in '000
OTHER LIABILITIES
Mark-up / return / imerest payable on borrowings
- in local currency 12.1 2,408 7,692 14,325
Accrucd expenses 230,480 248.197 198,894
Payable o pension fund 30.2 837,504 934,681 733.161
Payable Lo post retirement medical benelits 302 939,992 1.003.934 738,826
Payable agaimst emplovees’ compensated absences 30.10 434903 449,774 357.366
Refundable to customers against advancees 15.924 17,830 45.138
Payable to SBP 12.2 3.965,546 2.897.527 1.837.621
Insurance premium payable 123 58,223 11.478 62.363
Deferred credits 12.4 1,383,827 1.324.255 1.185.474
Reimbursement of claims by Government of Pakistan 12.5 579 579 219400
Salary compensation and benevolent fund
pavable to VSS oprecs - 11.645 32.103
Retention money pavable 10,103 5.339 3.879
Application fee- Gawadar Project - 3.884 53.887 3.915
Agents’ deposit money 585 985 1.185
Others 3,136 7.651 1,545

7.887.394 6.925.454 5,435,195
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12.2.1

12.3

12.4

12.4.1

12.4.2

12.4.3

12.4.4

This vepresents mark-up acerned on sukak issued to various [inancial institutions as mentioned innote 11,1.2.

Restated Restated
2013 2012 2011
Payable to SBP Rupees in "000
Balance at January | 2,897,527 1.837.621 775.296
Sharc of (loss) /7 prolic- (201 2: restated) 12.2.] - (845) 94,443
2,897,527 1,836,776 869.739
Add: Markup accrued on SBP credit lines P 1.068.019 1,060,751 967.882
Balance at Decemhber 31 3.965.546 2,897,527 1.837.621

No profit and loss sharing is made in the vear 2013 as all credit lines became over duc in the year 2012 and hence markup was
charged thereon.

Monthly insurance premium is pavable to State Life Insuranee Corporation ol Pakistan (SLIC) against the insurance of
outstanding dues Irom the partners in case of their death or total disablement and insurance premium payable to Takalul Pakistan
Limited against nsurance of mortgage property. The amount of these premiums are recoverable from partners in their monthly

mslallments
2013 2012
Note Rupees in 000
Deferred credits
Demand charges - net ol recovery expenses 1241 & 12.4.2 337.213 523,672
Proiit/compussion received Irom State Life Insurance
Corporation - net of death clanms . 12.4.3 208.562 208.562
Provision against insurance receivable from partners (251,238) (183,036)
(12,676) 25.526
Unidentifiable msurance premium contribution received
from borrowers 7 pariners during prior years 12.4.4 52.503 52.503
Property insurance (12,495) (12,495)
40.008 40.008
Profit received on invesiment from delerred eredits 1245 & 12.4.6 954,282 810.049
1,188,827 1.429.255
Donations 1247 (105.000) (105.000)
1,383,827 1.324,255
Demand charpes - net ol recovery expenses
Demand charges recovered 12.4.6 641,802 625,149
Less: Recovery charges patd at December 31
Balance at January 01 (101.477) (100,640)
Fixpense for the vear (3,112) (837)
Balance at December 31 (104,589) (101,477)
537,213 523,672

Thix represents demand charges recovered after June 30, 2000 net of recovery expenses, transterred Lo this account in accordance
with the requirement of section 24(20)(dy of the House Building IFinance Corporation (HBIFC) Act, 1952 as amended by the
HBEC (Amendmenty Ordinance. 20010, The Board of Directors has approved (hat this amount will be used for mecting recovery
expenses and Tor charitable purposes.

According to the agreement with SLIC, death claims lodged after the profit / commission distribution will be adjusted by the
Company through prolit/ comnnssion chirged 1o deferred credit account.

This represents antount receved i prior years” on account ol Group Insurance Premium from individoal borrowers / partners on
account of rate dilferences As ol December 31, 2000 these amounts were pending allocation 1o individual pariners /7 borrowers,
Duce to non-availability of the relevant records. these amounts have been transferred 1o this account aller approval of the Board off
Dircctors ol the Company and svill he used Tor refict ol widows. orphans and incapacitated partners which are not covered by any
other relict package or gronp insurance policy .
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12.4.5

12.4.6

12.4.7

13.
13.1

13.2

This represents ivestment income allocation against the income carncd up to the current year by the Company in respect of the
ttems reflected in the deferred eredit account using average yield.

Movement in demand charges and profit received

Demand Charges - net of Prolit received on investment
recovery expenses from deferred credit
2012 2011 2012 2011
------------------------ Rupees in "000
Balance as at January (1 625,149 615.303 840,049 715,455
Profit credited during the year - - 114,233 124,594
Demand charges recovered 16.653 9,846 - -
Balance as at December 31 641,802 625,149 954,282 840,049

In 2012 donation of Rs. 2.5 million were paid to IBA Endowment Fund, in 2011 Rs. 2.5 million was paid to Sindh Institute of
Urology and Transplamation (SIUT) and in 2010, Rs. 100 million were donated to Prime Minister Flood Reliel Fund.

IFederal Government paid Rupees 912.803 milhon to the Company during the years 2009 and 2010 for adjusting the outstanding
advances of partners” at carthquake afTected areas. Based upon an independent study, the Company adjusted advances of 4,400
partners amowunting to Rupees 694.018 million during 2011, against which the amount claimed from Federal Government was
Rupees 724,683 million. Ater such adjustment. the Company refunded the unutilized remaining balance of Rupees 218.784
million to the Federal Government,

SHARE CAPTTAL

Authorized Capital

2013 20102 2013 2012
Number of Sharex Rupees in '000
600.000.000 600.000.000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- cach 6,000.000 6.000,000

Issued, subscerib [ssued, subseribed and paid up capital

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 cach:

8 6 - Fully paid in cash - -
300.000.000 300.000L000 - Issued Tor consideration other than cash 3.000.000 3.000,000
100.000 FO0.000 - Shares issued Tor consideration in cash 1.000 1,000
300.100.006 300,100,006 3.001.000 3,001,000

Pattern of share holding:

187.562.506 187.562.5006 - Federal Government 1,.875.625 1.875.625
112.537.500 112.537.500 - State Bunk of Pakistan 1125375 1,125375
300,100,006 300.100.006 3,001,000 3,001,000

As at December 31, 20130 the Company has cquity o Rs. 2,162 billion against the mimimum required cquity of Rs. 6 billion as
preseribed by the SBE for DFIs through BSD Circular No. 19 dated Seprember 035, 2008, State Bank of Pakistan vide its letter No.
BSD/BAID/639/2145/2012 dated Fehraary 16, 2012 granted exemption to the Company from the minimum capital requirement
Il December 31,2042 or completion of privatization / restructuring process. whichever is later. The Company is in process of
linancial restructurmg and proposal in ihis regard was submitted o the Ministry of Finance and State Bank of Pakistan. by virtue
of which the Company requested the capial induction of Rs. 3 billion by the Government of Pakistan and conversion of
outstanding credit Hines by State Bank ol Pakistan (SBP) into long term loan or preference shares at reasonable markup rate.

Subsequent to vear end, 1t has been agreed that SBP's credit lines (principal amount) alongsith the markup thercon will be
converted to SBP's investiment in the equity of the Company (Note 1.1).

.
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14.1

16.

2013 2012
(DEFICTT)/ SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS Note Rupees in '000

Avatlable-for-sale securities

Government seeurilics 14,1 (6,792) 4,110

NMovement of (deficit) / surplus on revaluation of assets

Opening balance 4110 (5.013)
(Delicit) / surplus during the vear (10,902) 9.123
Closing balance (6,792) 4,110
2013 2012
CONTINGENCIES AND CONIMUTMENTS Rupees in '000

Contingencies

Claims not acknowledged as debt 17,990 47,990

In the vear 1995, the Company had entered into an agreement with a courier scrvice company. Subsequently, duc 1o
unsatisfactory service by the courier service company, the Company terminated the contract. The courier service company
clmmed indemnity of loss of Rs. 39.89 million and filed a suit Tor recovery from the Company which is pending in the High
Court of Sindh. The Tegal advisor of the Company is confident that the Company has a strong casc and no economic outflow is
expected.

I the year 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with a hospital in Karachi for providing medical facilitates / treatment
to employees ol the Company and their dependents. The said hospital lodged a claim of Rs. & 10 million against the Company
which include bills of the persons who were not referred by the Company (o the saicl hospital, as these were neither the
Company's emplovees nor their dependents, Currently, the case is pending for adjudication at Monorable Sindh High Court. The
legal advisor of the Company is conlident that the Company has a strong case and no cconomic outflow is expeeted.

2013 2012
Rupees in "000
Commitments
Land for IHousimg projects-Gawadar 149,700 149,700
Land for Gawadar office 9.750 9.750
Loans sanctioned but ot disburzed 137.510 80.542

Rental due under operating lease agreements in respeet of vehieles

Not later than one vear 3.368 4,588
Later than one vear but not Tater than five yeirs 3.613 7.166
Design. supervision and construction contract for Islamabad projeet 37.800 169.900
Equity investment in Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company 200.000 200.000

RENTALNARK-UP/RETURN/INTEREST EARNED

On advances to customers 1.907.467 1,643331
On investments 1 seeuarities:

Available for sale 685.812 759.785
leld to maturity 22 853 44.286
On deposits with financial institutions 12319 31.27]
On seeurities purchased under resale agreements 146.584 55.828
On clean lending 3.155 880
2,778.190 2,535,381

RENTALATARK-UP/RETURNANTEREST EXPENSED
Markup on sukuk certificares 34.462 79.877
Markup on SBP credit lines L1222 1,068,019 1,060,751
’ 1,102,481 1.140,628

REVERSALS OF PROVISION MADE AGAINST NON
- PERFORMING ADVANCES

Reversal of provision agaist sdvimees- ne

. 8.15.1 378.076 71,350




2013 2012
Rupees in "000
19, RECONCILIATION ADJUSTMENTS

Tagped accounts scttied 19.1 3.160 -

19.1 This represents adpustment made in head olTice records lor accounts closed at district oftices while balance appearing at head
alTice records

20. REVERSAL DUE TO RELIVEF PACKAGE AND REPROCESSING ADJUSTMENTS
Relief package and settlement scheme 20.1 262.044 2.772
Reprocessmg and closme adjustiment 20.2 89.310 245.797
351,354 248,569
20.1 This represents reversal ot rental income which was eredited to profit and loss account in previous years. This reversal has been

made as a result of veficl package and sertiement scheme announced by the Board of Dircctors as explained fully in Note 8.3 to
the tfinancial statements.

20.2 This represents reversal of income recognized in previous years based on reconciliations of collection and disbursement.
21. OTHER INCOMIE
Inspection and application fce 11,222 14.227
Gam on sale ol operating fixed asscis 93 1.625 4.613
Miscellancous 39,971 60,298
52.818 79,158
. Restated
22. ADNMINISTRATIVE FXPENSES 2013 2012
Rupees in '000
Salaries. allowances. cte. 851.908 798.821
Charge Tor defined benefit plan - pension (2012: restated) 30.2 204.494 166.091
Post retirement medical benelits (2012 restated) 30.2 140462 114.638
Employces' compensated absenees 30.10 (9.862) 98.423
Repairs and maintenance 34,063 36.570
Legal and prolcssional 15212 19,778
Rent, taxes, msuranee, clectricity, cle. 33.337 31,660
Stationery and printing 11,211 11.528
Advertisement and publicity 3,967 9.771
Auditors' remuneration 221 2.735 2.735
Depreciation 9.2 22,780 24.040
Amortization of intangible assets 9.4 630 1.nl4
Traveling and convevance 10.227 13,364
Pastage and telephone 15.148 13.744
Entertainment 1.342 1,588
Security guard charges 2176 2.325
Subscription and publication 390 711
Commission agiainst recoveries 2 372
Others 3,560 130,432
1,323,782 1,177,605
2013 2012
22.1 Auditors' remunceration Rupees in '000
Audit fee ’ 1,100 1,100
Half vearly review 385 385
Special certification, internal control over linancial reporting,
other reviews and sundry advisory fee 1,250 1,250
2,735 2,735




23.

24.

NN
T

26.

26.1

26.2

27.

2013 2012
OTHER PROVISIONS Rupees in 000

Doubtful receivable ol insurance premiam from pariners 13,360 (817)

OTHER CHARGES

Penalty imposed by State Bank ol Pakistan 4.129 534
Commission and bank charges 7,428 §379
11.557 8913

SBP SHARE OF PROIT
Allocation of income / expenses to Interest Bearing Scheme and PLS Scheme

No profit and Toss sharing is made in the vear 2003 as all credit lines beeame over due in the year 2012 and hence markup was
charged thereon

2013 2012
TAXATION Rupees in '000
Current - for the yvear
Company 104917 40.215
Associate - R
104917 40,215
For prior years
Company - 39
Deferred - for the vear
Company P f
Associate - _
104,917 40,254
Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit / (foss)
Accounting prolit / (loss) belore taxation (2012: restated) 487,026 (123.721)
Tax on Accounting profic/ (Toss) e 34% (2012: 35%) 165,589 (43.302)
Tax Effects of:
- expenses that are not deductible 7 dedactable for determining taxable profit (60.672) 106.118
- prior year charpe - 39
- prior year restatement clfect - (22,601)
104917 40,254

The taxation officer while assessing taxable income for the tax years 2006 and 2007 has disallowed cerlain expenses on account
of mitial depreciation, demand charges. retirement benelits, suspension of income and written-off loans, ctc. and created an
additional demand of Rs. 20.28 millian and Rs. 39.71 million, respectively. The Company has filed appeals with CIT(Appcals)
against the smd orders. The CITEA) inits order dated June 11, 2010 has conlirmed the action of taxation officer on account of
initial depreciation. demand charges, cte. and directed him to rectify his order in respect of suspended income and writing ol f of
income to PASMIC in tax vear 2007 after verifying the documents available with the Company. The Company had filed an
appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Infand Revenue (ATIR) against the order passed by CUT (A). No provision has been made in
the financial statements in this regard as the management is confident that ultimate outcome of the appeals in question will be in
Favour of the Company

The mcome tax assessment year 2001-2002 and tax year 2003 arc pending at appellate forums. Flowever. as a matter of prudence
sufficient tax provision has been made in the books ol accounts,

The Company has net deductible wemporary ditfercnces and assessed tax losses on which deferred tax assct ol Rs. 755.550
million arises. Deferred tax asset as at 31 December 2013 to the extent of Rs. 434,305 million has not been recognized as the
Company is uncertain abour the timing and extent of future taxable prolits against which such benelits can be utilized. However,
delerred tax asset of Rupees 3210245 (20120 Rupees 449.781) million arising on nel actuanal loss on stall retirement benefit
recognized dircetdy on other comprehensive income has been accounted for in these financial statements which will also be
reversed in other compreliensive income.

BASIC & DILUTED EARNINGS /7 (LOSS) PER SIHTARE

Profit/ (loss) for the yvear (Rupccs'in '000) 382,109 (163,975)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Number) 300,100,006 300,100,006
Basic / diluted carmmyps / (loss) per share - Rupees 1.27 (0.55)
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27.1

29.

30.
30.1

30.2

30.3

30.4

Diluted carnings 7 (Joss) per share hos not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible instruments in
issuc al December 31,2013 and 2012 which would have any eflect on the carnings per sharc if the option to convert is

2013 2012
CASH AND CASII FQUIVALENTS Note Rupees in 7000
Cash and balance with treasury banks 4 80,564 63.943
Balance with other banks 5 226,912 168,310
307.476 232,253
STAFIF STRENGT
As at year-end
Permancnt 754 779
Temporary / on contractual basis 10 19
764 798
Average during the vear
Permanent 767 790
Temporary / on contractual basis 15 22
782 812

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
Principal actuarial assumptions

The “Projected Unit Credit™ seruarial cost method. using the following significant assumptions, arc used by the actuary for
the valuation:

2013 2012 2011
Pension fund
Discount rale 13 % per annum 11.5 % per annum 13 % per annul
Expected rale of return on investments / plan assets 13 % per annum {1.5 % per annum 13 % per annwi
Expected rate of increase in salary 13 % per annum 10.5 % per annum 12 % per annw
Pension fincrease rate k 10.5 % per annum 9 % per annum 9 % per annum

Movement in pavable to defined henefit plan
Post retirement
Pension fund Medical benefits
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Rupees in 000

Opening net liabilin 934.681 733.161 (22.746) 1.003,934 738.826 513.959
Lixpense [or the vear 204,494 166.091 209.176 140,462 114.638 104.021
Benefit payments (113.250) (117.752) (271.341) (14.777) (13.093) (531.051)
Contribution during the vear - - - - - -
Other Comprehensive Income (188.421) 153,181 818,272 (189.627) 163.563 171,897
Balance at December 31 837.504 934,681 733.16] 939,992 1.003.934 738,826

Reconciliation of pavahle to defined benefit plan
Posl retirement
Pension fund Medical benefits
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Rupees in 000

Present value of delined

beaefit oblipation 3.237.201 3,140,201 2,620.728 939,992 1,003.934 738.826
IFair value of plan assels (2.399.696) (2.205520) (1.887.5067) - - -
Net liability at December 31 8§37.505 034.681 733.16] 939,992 1.003.934 738.826

PPost retirement
Pension fund Medical benefits
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Rupees in 000
Charge for defined henelit plan )
Current service cosl 103,518 78,134 69.844° 25.859 19.442 13.337
Net Interest 100.976 87.657 89.837 114.603 95.196 82.992
Actuarial (gain/loss recognized
-in P&IL - - 19.494 - - 5,492
204.494 166.091 209.175 140.462 114.638 104.021
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30.5

30.6

30.7

30.8

30.9

30.10

31.

311

31.2

2013 2012 2011
Rupees in '000
Actual return on plan assets
Pension lund 194.176 317.953 233,519
C()m_posi(i()n of Fair Value of Plan Assets
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
Rupees in '000 Yo age
Pension Fund
Government Bonds and T1°C's 2.138.272 1.953,760 1.886.884 89.11 88.68 99.96
Bank Balances 261.220 249,760 683 10.89 11.32 0.04
2.399.492 2.205.520 1.887.567 100.00 100.00 100.00

The expeeted return on plan asscts was determined by considering the expected returns available on the assets underlying
the current investment policy. Lixpected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the
reporting date. Expecled return on equity investments reflect long-term real rates of return experienced in the market.

Five year's data on surplus / deficit of the plan and actuarial adjustments

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
T I Rupees in 000 - - - -w--emeemmooa e >
Pension Fund
Present value of defined benelil obligation 3,237,201 3.140.201 2.620,728 2.417.489 2.085,972
Fair value ol plan asscts (2.399.696)  (2,205.520)  (1.887.567) (1.654.048)  (1,376,148)
Deficit 837.505 934.681 733.161 763.441 709.824
Actuarial (gamn) / loss on obligation (247.879) 225730 94,017 989.519 (4.573)
Actuarial (loss)Ygains on plan asscts 59.458 (72.569) (12,438) (33.239) 78.943
Post Employment Medical Contribution
Present value of delined benelit obligation 939,992 1.003.934 738.826 638.194 547.389
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (189.627) 163.563 533,134 225831 (39.380)
Compensated Absences
Movementin payvable to defined benefit plan 2013 2012 2011
Rupees in '000
Opening net Habiliny 449.774 357.366 377.729
Expense lor the vear (9.862) 98.423 90
Benefit payments (5.009) 6.013) (20,453)
Balance at December 31 434.903 449,774 357.366
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Maunaging Dircector Directors Exccultives
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
R T TR Rupees in 000 - -~ o v oo mmmemmmie oo oo >
Direclors IFees - - - 260 - -
Managerial remunerition - 4413 - 19.305 31.437
Rent and house maintenance _ 2.052 - - 12.743 17.834
Ulilities - 651 - - 1,273 1.458
Medical - 95 - - 3.980 6.341
Charge for defined benefit phan - - - - 12,742 31.165
Others - 4.616 - - 18.926 12,735
11.832 - 260 68.969 100.970
Number of persons - ! - . /4 2] 21

Lixecutive means employvee, other thin the Chicl” Exceutive and Directors. whose basic salary exceed live hundred thousand

rupees in a Ninancial vear,

The Company also provides free use of the Company maintained car to Managing Dircctor and Excculives in accordance

with their entitlemenis.
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32. FAIR VALULE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

33.

The fair valuc of raded investments other than those classificd as held to maturity is based on
quoted market price. Fair valuc of unquoted cquity investments is determined on the basis of
bréak up valuc ol these investments as per the latest available financial statements.

Fair value of fixed term loans. other asscts, other Habilities and fixed term deposits cannot be
calculated with sulficient reliability duc to absence of current and active market for such
assets and liabilitics and reliable data regarding market rates for simifar instruments. The
provision for non-performing advances has been calculated in accordance with the Company's
accounting policy as stated in note 3.4 to these financial statements.

The repricing profile. clfective rates and maturity are stated in note 35.3.1 and 35.4.1.

The management is ol the view that the fair value of the remaining financial assets and
Habilities arc not significantly different from their carrying values since assets and liabilities
are either short term in nature or in the case of customer advances are [requently repriced.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related partics comprise associated undertaking, retircment benefit plans, directors and key
management personnel of the Company. These transactions were made on substantially the
same commercial terms as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with
unrelated partics and did not involve more than a normal amount of rigsk. There were no
transactions with the kev management personnel other than those under the terms of their
employment. Details of wransactions with the related parties other than those which have been
disclosced elsewhere in these financial statements, arc as follows:

2013 2012
Relationship Nature of Transaction Rupees in '000
Associated undcertaking
Takalul Pakistan Limited Insurance premium paid 8,963 7.007
Insurance claims received 40 6.711
Key management personnel Proceeds [rom disposal of 86 4]
opcrating fixed assets
LLoans and advances 67,225 17.879
Retirement beneflits plans Pension fund 6,996 13,704
Post retirement medical benefits 3,848 7,494

The related party status of outstanding receivables and payables as al December 31, 2013 are
included in respective notes to the financial statements.

Remuneration to key management personncel is disclosed in Note 31 to these financial
statemenlts.
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34,

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

State Bank of Pakistn (SBP) requires Banks/DELS 1o maintain regulatory capital Tor credit, market and operational risks which should
atleast be equal 1o 10% of totad risk weighied asscts. As per SBP BPRD Circular no 06 dated August 15, 2013 wherein SBP has asked
banks/DFis to implement Basel W retorms issaed by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) 1o further strengthen the capita)
rclated rules. The Company has implemented Basel 1 framework in the fight ol SBP instructions. The Company monitors its capital
adequacy ratio and endeavors to maintain it al o level sufliciently higher than the minimum regulatory requirement. The Company
caleulates capital requirement as per Basel 1 regulatory framework, using the Standardized Approach for Credit Risk and Market Risk
whereas Basic Indicator Approach for Operational Risk.

Objectives of Capital Management

The capital management objectives of the Company are as follows:
- Tomaintain sulTicient capital to support overall business strategy, expansion and growlth:
- Tointegrate capital allocation decisinns with ihe sirategic and financial planning process:
- To meet the regulatory capital adequacy ratios as detined by SBP:

To safeguard the Company’s ability io continue as a going coneern so that it can eontinue to provide adequate return 1o sharcholders: and

- To have a prudent bulter to protect the Company under different cconomic and stress scenarios caused by unexpeeted and unforesccable
events.

In order to strengthen the solveney of Development Financial Institutions (DFls), SBP through its BSD Circular No, 19 of 2008 dated
September 3, 2008 has asked 10 raise their minimum paid up capital to Rs. 6 billion (free of losses) up to December 31, 2009. However,
there is a shortlall of Rs. 3.838 billion in minimum capital requirement. In order to meel the shortfall, the Company has approached its
sharcholders i.c. Ministry of Finance and State Bank of Pakistan, to inject the required capital, the eventual outcome of which has been
disclosed in Note 1.1,

SBP through its BS Circulir No. 07 o 2009 dated April 13, 2009 has also asked 1o achieve the minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
ol 10%. The capilal adequaey ratio (CAR) of the Company stands at 22.24% ol its risk weighted exposurcs as at December 31, 2013, The
Company has maintained capital adeguacy ritio well above 10%. Subsequent to period end. it has been deeided between the representatives
of §BP. SECP and the Company to convert the Company's fotal outstanding, debt of Rupees 11.242 billion payable along with markup
payable ol Rupees 2448 hilfion (agercuate) v the cquity ol the Company. morciully explained in Note 1.1,

The capital adequacy ratio of the Company was subject 1o the Basel HH capital adequacy guidelines stipulated by the State Bank of Pakistan

through its circular BPRD Circutar No. 06 of 2013 dated August 15,2013,

These instructions are effechive from December 3102013 v a phased manner with full implementation intended by December 31, 2019.

Under Basel N goidehnes banks 7 D145 are required 1o maintain the lollowing ralios on an ongoing basis:

Phase-in arrangement and fall implementation of the minimum eapital vequirements:

[s~o. I watio 2003 J[ 2009 [ 2015 )L 2016 J0 amiz [ 2098 J[ 2019 ]

1 CET-1 5.00% | S.50% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
2 ADT-1 1.50%, 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50% 1.50%
3 TIER-1 6.50% 7.00% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
4 Total Camital 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
3 ccB - - 0.25% 0.65% 1.28% 1.90% 2.50%
6 Total  Capital 10.00% 10.00% 10.25% 10.65% 11.28% 11.90% 12.50%

plus CCB

L

The Company’s regakitory capital under Basel 1 framework is analyzed in following terms:
I Tier 1 Capital (zoing-cancern capital)
1. Comunon Equity Tier 1T(CET 1y
i Additional Tier 1 (AT
2. Tier 2 Capital (gone-concern capitab)
Common Equity Tier 1 {(CET1)
Common Equity Tier | capital consist sum of the following items:

1. Fully paid ap (common shares) capital 7 assigned capital,
ii. Balance i share preminnm acconnt
iii. Reserve [or Issue ol Bonus Shires
iv. General/ Statatory Reserves as disclosed on the halance-sheet
v Minority Interest (In case of consolidation)
vi. Up-appropriated 7 an remitted profits (net of accunnidated losses, H'm')y)
vil. Less regulatory adjossnents applicable of CETY as specified in Basel 11
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Additional Tier 1 Capital (ATV)

Additional Tier capital shall consist ol'the following items:

i Instruments issued by banks that mect the qualifying criteria for AT1 as specilied in Base! U]
it. Share premium resulting [rom the issuance of Al insiruments.

ili. Minority interest 1.¢. A'T1 issued by consalidated parties 1o third parties.

iv. Less regulatory adjustments applicable on AT1 as specified iv Basel 111

Tier 2 Capital (Gone Concern Capital or Supplementary Capital)

The Tier 2 capital (or gone concern capital) shall include the following clements:

i. Subordinated debt/instruments (mcecting cligibility criteria as speeified in Basel 111)

1. Share premium resulting from the issuc o instruments included in Tier 2.

iti. Minority Interest i.e. Tier -2 issued by consolidated subsidiarics to third particd as specified in Bascl 111
iv. Revaluation reserves (net of deficits. il any)

v. General provisions or general Reserves for loan Josses

vi. Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves

vil. Undisclosed Reserves

viii. Less regulatory adjustments applicable on Tier -2 capital as specified in Basel 111

34.1 CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Bl i

o

9.
0.

12,

13.
14,

fo.

Common Equity Tier [ Capital (CET 1): Instruments & Reserves

FFully Paid-up Capital 7 Capital deposiied with S3P

Balance in Share Premium Account

Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares

General / Statutory Reserves (as disclosed on Balance Sheet)

Unappropriated / unremitted profits - net of accumulated losses, if any (losscs as
negative humber) R

Minority Interests arising from CIT'1 capital insbruments issued to third party by
consolidated company subsidiaries ([rom "Consolidation sheet™)

CE'F 1 before Regulatory Adjustments

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (CET 1): Regulatory Adjustoents

Goodwill (net of any associated delerred tax liability)

All other intangibles (net of any associnted deferred tax liability)

Shortfall in provisions required against classilied assets (without considering any lax
impact)

Deterred tax assets (net of any assoctated delerred tax liability) excluding DTAs arising
from temporary differences such as allowance for credit tosses

Defined beneltt pension fund assets (net of any associated delerred tax hability)
Reciprocal cross holdings i ClETT capital instruments o banking, financial, and
msurance enlities

Cash [low hedge reserve

Investment in own shares / CET1 instruments

Any increase in equity capital resulting [rom a sceuritization transaction

Capital shortlall of regalated subsidiaries

Delicit on account of revatuation from Company's holdings of property / AFS
Investments i the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entitics that
are oulside the scope ol regulatory consolidation, where the company does not own
more than 10% of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)

Significant imvestments in the capital instruments issucd by banking. lnancial and
insurance entities that are ontside the seope of regulatory consolidation (amount above
10% threshold)

Deferred Tax Asscts ansimg from temporary  differences (amount abave  10%
threshold, net of related ax liability)

Amount exceeding 3% threshold tsignificant Investments and [DTA)

National specific regnlatory adjustments applicd 10 CIET'L capital

Investment in THCs o ather banks exceeding the preseribed finit

Any ather deduction specitied by SBP

Adjustment 1o CETY o cover shortlall in AT adjustmems

Total Regulatory Adjustment applicd 10 CE

Common Fquity Tier 1 a

2013

2012

Rupees in "000

3,001,000

713,005

(1,552.348)

3,001,000

636,583

(2.107.547)

2,161.657

1,530,036

2,363 2,963
6.792 -
9,135 2.963
2052502 [ 1.527,073]
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62,
063,

Additional Tier 1 LAV 1) Caphal

Qualifying Addiional "lier-1 instruments plus any reliated share premium
of which: Classified as equity
of which: Classificd as habilitics
Additional Ticr-1 capital insiruments issued by consolidated subsidiaries and held by
third partics (amount allowed in eroup AT - from "Consolidation sheet™)
AT before Regulitory Adjustiments

Additional Tier | (AT 1) Capital: Regulatory Adjustment

Investment in mutaal funds exceeding the preseribed timit (SBP Speeilic Adjustment)
Investment in oxwn AT capital instruments

Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional ‘Tier | capital instruments of banking,
financial, and insurance entities

Investiments in the capital instruments of banking, linancial and insurance entitics that
are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the company does not own
more than 10% of the issued shure capital (amouant above 10% threshold)

Significant investments n the capital instruments issucd by banking, {nancial and
insurance entities i we oulside the scope ol regulatory consolidation

Portion ol deduction apphed S0:50 16 core capital and supplementary capital based on
pre-Basel [ treatment which. during transitional period. remain subjeet to deduction
{rom ticr-1 capital

Adjusiment to AV 1o cover shorifall in 12 adjustments

Total of Regulatory Adjusument applied to AT eapital

Additional Tier 1 Capital recognized [or Capital Adequacy

Tier [.Capital (CET [t Admissible AT 1)

Tier 2 Capital

Qualilying (Bascel i) Tier 2 capital instruments

Capital instraments subjeet to phase out from tier 2

Tier 2 capital instruments issued o third party by consolidated subsidiaries (amount
allowed in group tier 2)

General Provisions or general reserves for toan losses-up to maximum ol 1.25% of
Credit Risk Weighted Assets

Revaluation Reserves (deficit) £ surptus on AFS

T2 belore regulatory adjustmenis

Tier 2 (12) Capital: Regulatory Adjustment

Portion of deduction apphicd 30:50 10 core capital and supplementary capital based on
pre-Basel HE treatmen which, during transitional period, remain subjeet to deduetion
Irom tier-2 capital

Receiprocal cross holdmes m Tier 2 instrinnents

mvestment in own Tier 2 copital instrinent

Investments in the capital instraments of banking. tinancial and insurance entitics that
are outside the scope of regalntary consofidation, where the company does not own
more than 10% of the issued share capital (amonnt above 10% threshold)

Signiticant investments in the capital instraments issued by banking, financial and
insurance enlities that are ontside the scope of reeulatory consolidation
Amount of Regulatory Adjustment applicd 1o 12 capital

Tier 2 Capitd (12)

Tier 2 Capital ('12) recognized for capital adeguacy

Excess Additional Tier 1 Capital recognized in Tier 2 Capital
Total Tier 2 Capital admissible for Capitat Adequacy

TOTAL CAPITAL ('L 4 admissible 12)

Totaf Risk Weighted Assers

Total Credit Risk Weighied Assets
Total Marker Risk Waeiehied Assets

Total Operational Risk Weighted Assels

b

{(c = a+h)
d

e= (cd)
(1)

2013

2012

Rupees in '000

-

-]

2,152,502 1,527,073
90,990 79.360
- 4,110
90.990 83.470
90.990 83.470
90,990 $3.470
2.2:43.492 1,610,543
[ 10.087,183) [ 10.681,366)
7,384.623 7.876.937
152.773 188.763
2.549.789 2.615.666
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64,

63,

66.

67,
68,
69.
70.
71.
72,
73.

Capital Adequacy Ratios (in percentage of Risk Weighted Assets)
CETI 1o total RWA
Tier-1 capital 10 (otl RWA

Total capital to RWA

Limits (Maxima/ Minima)

CET1 1o 10tal RWA

ADTI to 1otal RWA

Tier-1 capital (o toal RWA
Tier-2 capital to 1olal RAWA
Total capital to RWA
Capital Conservation Buller

Total capital plus CCB

34.2 CAPITAL STRUCTURE RECONCILIATION

STEP 1

ASSETS

Cash and balances withy ireusury hanks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to Inancial institutions
Investments - net

Advances - net

Operating lixed asscis

Deferred tax asset

Other asscls

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sab-ordinated loans

Liabilitics against assefs suhject 1o finance fease
Delerred tax labilities

Other liabilitics

NET ASSETS
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital

Reserves

Accumulated loss

Advance againsl issuc vl capila)

(Delicit) / surplus on revaluation ol assels

2013 2012
Rupees in "000

(afi) 21.34% 14.30%
(¢/i) 21.34% 14.30%
(efi) 22.24% 15.08%
5.00% ;
1.50% ;
6.50% -
3.50% .
10.00% 10.00%
10.00% 10.00%

Balance Sheet
as in the Under
published Regulatory
financial seope
statements
2013 2013
Rupees in "000
80.364 80).564
226912 226912
2.139.321 2,439,321
8,033,214 8.033.214
9.700.151 9.700.151
344.400 344.400
321.245 321.245
306,893 506,895
21632.702 21,652,702

11,392,300 11,392,300

7,887,394 7,887,394
19,279,694 19.279,694
2,373,008 2.373,008
3,001,000 3.001,000
713,005 713.005
(1,552.348)  (1,552.348)
2,161.657 2,161,657
218143 218,143
(6,792) (6,792)
2,373.008 2,373,008
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STEP 2

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasnry banks
Balances with other banks
Lendings to financial institutions

Investments - net

of which: Non significant capital mvestment in capital of other

financial institution exceeding 1% threshold

of which: Non signilicant capital investment in [inancial scetor entitics

exceeding regulatory threshold

ol which: Mutual Fund exceeding regutatory threshold
ol which: reciprocal crossholding ol capital instrument
ol which: others

Advances

of which: Shortfall m provision 7 excess of EL mmount over cligible

provision under [R13
of which: General provisian reflected in Tier 2 Capital

Operaling fixed asscts
of which: Intangibles

Delerred tax assets
Other assets
TOTAL ASSIETS

LIABILITIES

Bills payahle

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilitics against assets subject (o finance leuse
Deferred tax liabilities

Other habihties

NET ASSETS

Share capital

of which: amount cligible for CIIT

of which: amount elivible for A1 |

Reserves

ol which: amount cligible for CI1IT 1

of which: wmount eligible for er 2

Accamulated Joss

Minority Inlerest

of which: amount cligible for CIT
of which: amount eligable for AT

of which: amount ¢ligible for Tier 2

Advance against issue of capital

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation ol assels

of which: Revaluation reserve on property
ol'which: unrealized Gain / Loss on AFS

In case ol Delici on revaluation (deduction rom CET1)

Balance Sheet

asin the Under
published regulatory Reterence
financial scope
statements
2013

Rupees in '000

80,564 80.564
226912 226912
2439321 2.439.321
8033214 8,033.214
9.700,151  9.700,151
90,990 90,999
344,400 344,400

[ 2363 | 2,363 |
321245 321.245
506,895 506,895
21,652,702 21.652.702

11,392,300

11,392,300

7.887,394 7,887,394
19,279,694 19,279,694
2,373,008 2,373,008
3,001,000 3,001,000
3,001,000 3.001.000

713,005 713.005

713,005 713.005

(1.552.348)

(1.552.348)

218,143 218,143
(6.792) (6,792)
(6.792) (6.792)

2373008 2.373.008

£
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STEP 3

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (CE'F 1): Instruments & Reserves

Fully Paid-up Capial/ Capital deposited with SBP

Balance in Share Premimm Account

Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares

General/ Statutory Reserves {as disclosed on Batanee Sheet)

Gain/(Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow 1Hedge

Unappropriated/unremiticd  prolits - net of accamualated losses, it any (losses as
ncgative number)

Minority Interests arising from  CET1 capital instruments issued to third party by
consolidated bank subsidiarices (from "Consolidation sheet™)

CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustinents
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital (CET 1): Regulatory Adjustments

Goodwill (net of uny associated delerred tax liability)

All other ntangibles (net ol any associated delerred tax liability)

Shortfall v provisions required against classified assets (without considering any tax
inmpact)

Delerred tax asscis (net of any associated deferred tax fiability) excluding DTAs
arising from temporary differences such as allowance for credit losses

Delined benefit pension fund assets (net ol any associated deferred tax liability)

Reciprocal cross holdings i CETD capital instraments ol banking, financial, and
msurance entines

Cash low hedee reserve

Investment in own shares/ CETT mstruments

Any increase in equily capital resulting (rom a securilization Iransaction

Capital shortlall ol regulated substidiaries

Delicit on account of revaluaiion Irom Company's holdings of property/ Al'S
Investments in the capital instruments ol banking, financial and insurance entities that
are outside the scope of repulatory consolidation, where the company does not own
more than 10% of the issued share capital (amouant above 1% threshold)

Significant ivestments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and
insurance entities that arce oulside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount above
10% threshold)

Deferred Tax  Assets arising from temporary  differences (amount above  10%
threshold. net of related rax Habitiny)

Amount exceeding 153% threshokd (significant vestiments and DTA)

National specific regutatory adjustments applied 10 CETL capital

Investment in TFCs ol other banks exceeding the preseribed limit

Any other deduction spuecificd by SBP

Adjustment o CETY to cover shortlall in AT1 adjustments

Total Regulatory Adjusiment applicd o CET

Common Equity Tier | a
Additional Tier § (A7 1) Capital
OQualifying Additional Ticr-1 instruments plus any related share premium

of which: Clas
of which: Class

fied as equity

fied as habihties .
Additional Tier-1 capstal instruments issued by consolidated subsidiaries and held by: hird partics
(amount allowed in group AT1 - from "Consolidation sheet™)

ATT before Regulatory Adjustments

Component
of regulatory
capital
reported by

Source hased
on reference
number from

Company Step 2

3.001.000 i

713.003 k

(1.552.348) m
2,161,657

2,363 h

- f

- d

6.792 s
9.155

- ]

F
N




Additional Tier T (AT 1) Capital: Regolatory Adjustment

Investment in mutual fands exceading the preseribed limit (SBP Specific Adjustment)

Investment in own AT capital instruments
Reeiprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments of banking,
linancial. and insurance entitics

Investments in the capital instruments of banking. financial and insurance entitics (hat
are outside the scope ol rezulimory consolidation, where the company docs not own

morce than 10% ol the ssued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)

Signilicant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and
imsurance entitics that are outside the scope of regulatary consolidation

Portion ol deduction apphicd 50:50 1o core capital and supplementary capital based on
pre-Bascl [[1 treatment which. during transitional period. remain subjeet 1o deduetion
from tier-1 capital

Adjustment to AT to cover shortfall in T2 adjustments

Total of Regulatory Adjusiment applicd to AT1 capital
Additional Tier 1 Capital vecopnized for Capital Adequacy
Tier 1 Capital (CE'T 1 Admissible AT )

Tier 2 Capital

Qualifving (Basel HH Vier 2 capital instriments

Capital instruments subject 1o phase out from tier 2

Tier 2 capital instrumuents issued Lo third party by consolidated subsidiaries (amount
allowed in group ter 29

General Provisions or general reserses for foan losses
Credit Risk Weighred Asses

up to maximum of 1.25% of

Revaluation Reserves (deficity £ surplus on AFS

T2 before regulntory adjustments
Tier 2 (T2) Capital: Repnlitory Adjostment

Portion of” deduction applicd 30:30 to core capital and supplementary capital based on
pre-Basel N treatment which. during transitional period. remain subject 1o deduction
from ticr-2 capital

Reciprocal croass holdings in “Tier 2 instruments

Investment in oswn Tier 2 capital instrutient

Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insarance entities that
are outside the scope ol reenlatory consolidation. where the company docs not own

.

move than 10% ol the sssucd shave capital Gunount above 10% threshold)

Significant ivestiments mthe capitid mstruments issued by banking. financial and
insurance entities that are owside the scope ol reeulatory consolidation
Amount of Regulators Adjustment applicd 1o 12 capitd

Tier 2 Capital {12)

Tier 2 Capital (T2) recognized lor capital adequacy

[ixcess Additional Tier 1 Capital recognized in Tier 2 Capital
Total Tier 2 Capital admissible for Capital Adeguacy

TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 1 admissible 12)

b
(c = a+b)
(d)
o= (¢+d)

Component
of regulatory
capital
reported by

Source based
on reference
number from

t
Company Step 2

- c

90.990 ¢

. v
90,990
90.990
90,990
2,243,492
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Capital Adequacy

The risk weighted assets to capital ratio . caleulated in accordance with the State Bank of Pakistan's guidelines on Capital Adcquacy was
as follows:

Capital Requirement Risk Weighted Asscts

2013 2012 2013 2012
----------------------- Rupees in "OB0 —mcemvmmecomcae e
Credit Risk

-On Balance Sheet

Corporatc Portfolio 1,106 2.277 11,064 22,774
Banks/DFls 15,841 4,476 158,406 44,761
Public Sector Lntities - - - -

Sovereign / Cash & Cash Equivalent - - - -

Loans sceured against residentia property 213,974 188,275 2,139,739 1,882,753
Retail 1.987 641 19,871 6,413
Past due Loans 344,766 428,599 3,447,661 4.285.993
Operating Fixed Asset 34,142 26,028 341417 260.281
Other Assets 68,979 61,002 689,785 610,015

Listed Equity investments and regulatory capital instruments issued by
other banks (other than thase deducted frome capital) held in the

company book. } 12,943 15,406 129429 154,056
693,738 726,704 6.937.372 7.267,046

-OIT Balance Sheet

Non Market related exposures 44725 60,989 447.250 609.892

Total Credit Risk 738,463 787,693 7,384,622 7.876,938

Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk 15.277 18,876 152.773 188,763
15.277 18.876 152,773 188,763
Operation Risk 254979 261,567 2,549,789 2,615,666
1,008,719 1,068,136 10,087,184 10,681,367

2013 2012

Rupees "000

Capital Adequacy Ratio

Total chigible regulatory capital held ¢ 2.243.492 1.610,343
Total Risk Weighted Assets [ 10,087.185 10.681.366
Capital Adeguacy Rato (/i) 22.24% 15.08%

RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Institutions are exposed o various risks in pursuit of their business objectives. The nature and complexity ol these risks has
rapidly changed over time. The faiture 1o adequately manage these risks not only results in business losses but also places hurdles in
achieving strategic abjectives. Consequently, a solid and vigorous risk management framework in the organization is required.

The Company's visk Miumnazement Poliey is in line with the Risk Management Guidetines ol State Bank of Pakistan and Bascl 1! Accord.
The Risk Management Poliey is approved by the Bourd of Directors

The risk management policies and procedures cover all activities of the Company including credit evaluation. treasury and invesiment

operations. The basie principles cmployed in formalation of the above palicies and procedures involves identification, mecasurement.
monitoring and controlling risks 1o ensure that: -
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35.1

- The Company's risk exposure is within the limits established by the Board of Directors.

- Rask taking decistons are in line with the business strategy and objectives ol the Company.
- The expected payolfs compensate the risks taken by the company.

Risk profile of the Company

The key risks are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk.

Risk Structures and Responsibilities

Organizational [ramework for Risk Management includes the following :

The Board of Dircctors is responsible for overall supervision of the risk management process. A
Board Risk Management Committee has been formed to regularly review risk related activities
of the organization. The Board Risk Management Committee is responsible to establish and
implement risk management ramework of the Company. Individual risks are reviewed and
controlled by various committecs at management level like ALCO and Credit Committee.

Risk Management Department is responsible for coordinating and implementing all the risk
management activitics of the Company. It ensure that risks remain within the boundaries as
defined by the Board. comply with the risk parameters and prudential limits and work out
remedial measurces. ‘Ihe core function is to identify, measure, monitor and report key risks to
which company may be exposed. It works in close coordination with all the functions and
business units that arc ivolved in risk taking.

Risk Management department undertakes the following activitics on regular basis utilizing the
overall risk framework: -
- Tormulate policics and guidelines for managing all risk categorics.
- Devclop systems and procedures. These systems and procedures should be capable of
accurate measurcement of the visks to identify deviation from approved risk parameters.
- Tacilitate introduction and implementation of prudent practices for risk management.
- TFacilitate management in business decisions by providing analytical risk reviews.
- Communicate and liaise with other functions and business units in carrying out risk
reviews, analysis and mitigation activities.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty may not settle an obligation for full value,
cither when duce or at any time thereafter. This risk arises from the potential that a customer or
counterparty's willingness to meet an obligation or its ability to meet such an obligation is
impaired, resulting in an ¢cconomic loss (o the company,

Housing Finance is the core function of the Company and credit risk is the major risk faced by
the Company. Credit risk is incurred mainly in the following two areas of its operations: -

- Inits credit operations. where it provides housing [Tnance to retail or wholesale clients; and

- In treasury operations where credit risk is incurred with counterparties in its investiments in financial
markets and instruments.

Overall credit risk is monitored by Credit Committec-at Head Office, which reviews and

recommends improvements in credit policies and monitors portfolio behavior. To further

strengthen credit risk management and credit sctup, proper delegation of credit decisions at

committee level with appropriate approvine limits has been made.
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35.1.1

Following measures have been applicd to govern credit policy of the Company: -

- Lending process and decision is based on a full appreciation of the risks inhcrent in the transaction.
Management monitors credit portfolio through MIS reports.

- Stress testing for individual credits and the overall credit portfolio under adverse changes in
the conditions / environment in which the borrowers operate.

- The Company has instituted an cffective system for monitoring servicing of its performing credit
portfolio and collcction of non performing portfolio.

- The Company creates loan loss provisions against non-performing advances in accordance with
Prudential Regulations issucd by SBP.

Credit Risk Mitigation

It is the Company's policy to reduce or mitigate credit risk on credit facilities or exposures, by
securing these with collaterals. To corrcctly assess the extent to which the collateral mitigates
the credit risk the collateral must be valued according to a specified valuation method,
documented and monitored.

In this regard following steps have been taken: -
- Qutsourcing ol property title verification.

- Outsourcing of borrower income verification.
- Qutsourcing of property valuation.

Credit Risk is also mitigated through a sct up of sub credit committee at Zonal and Regional
fevel for credit approvals depending upon the level of risk assumed. Overall credit risk is
monitored by central credit committee which reviews and recommends improvements in credit
policies and monitors portfolio behavior.

To strengthen credit risk management and to fulfill SBP requirements, the company is working
to develop and implement internal eredit risk rating system for its entire credit portfolio.

Collateral & Sccurity

Collateral is an important mitigant of credit risk. All the residential mortgages are
collateralized. Valuation of the collateral is taken within agreed parameters. The legal
mechanism by which collaterals is pledged and the company's procedures ensure that the
companv has clear richts over the collaterals and mav liquidate. retain or take leal possession
Insurance Cover

- Bvery borrower and guarantor is insured for life and disability for repayment of the balance amount

of the Toans.
- Every property taken as collateral is insured.

Credit Concentration Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk related to the degree of diversification in the credit
portfolio. i.c. the risk inherent in doing business with large customers or not being cqually
exposed across borrower types and ecographical regions. The concentration risk can arise in
foan book as well as imvestment book.

Segmental information
Segmental Information is presented in respeet of the class of business and geographical

distribution ot Advances. Deposits, Contingencics and Commitments.
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35.1.2.1 Seements by class of business
Lo mmem e e e aa i 2003 - - - o m e >
Contingencics and
Housing finance Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in "000 %o in '000 Yo in '000 %o
Individuals 12.293.757 97.98 - - - -
Others 253.783 2.02 - - 639,731 100.00
12,547.540 100 - - 639,731 100.00
R 2012 - - s e e e >
Contingencies and
Advances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Pereent Rupees Percent Rupces Percent
in '000 Yo in '000 Yo in 000 Yo
Individuals 12.854.842 98.03 - - - -
Others 257.989 1.97 - - 669,636 100.00
13.112.831 - 100 - - 669,636 100.00
35.1.2,2  Scgment by sector
e g 1) 1 S >
Contingencies and
Advauces (Gross) Deposits Commi{men{s
lupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in "000 Yo i "000 %o in '000 %o
Public / Government 245,153 1.95 - - 200.000 31.26
Private 12.302.387 98.05 - - 439,731 68.74
12.547.540 100.00 - - 639,731 100.00
e e 2002 < e e >
Contingencies and
Adyances (Gross) Deposits Commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in ‘000 Yo in "000 Yo in '000 Yo
Public / Government 249.359 1.90 - - 200,000 29.87
Private 12.863.472 98.10 - - 469.636 70.13
13.112.831 100.00 - - 669.636 100.00
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35.2.3

Credit Risk-General Disclosures Basel IT Specific
Credit Risk - General Disclosures

The Company has adopted the Standardized Approach of Basel 11 for weighting its Credit
Risk Exposures.

Credit Risk Disclosures for portfolio subject to the Standardized Approach -Basel II
Specific '
Under Standardized approach. the capital requirement is based on the credit rating assigned to
the counter parties by the External Credit Assessment [nstitution (ECATY duly recognized by
SBP for capital adequacy purposes. In this connection , the Company utilizes the credit rating
assiencd bv recoenized acencies such PACRA and JCR-VIS.

Types of Exposures and KCAT's used

Current Year

Exposures ' JCR-VIS PACRA (S(]))tcl;lcfry)
Corporatc . v v X
Banks v v X
Sovercigns X X X
SML's X X X
Sccuritizations X X X
Others (Specify) X X X

For exposurc amounts after risk mitigation subject to standardized approach, amount of
Company outstanding (rated & unrated) in each risk bucket as well as those that are deducted
are as follows: -

Credit Exposures subject to Standardized approach

Current Year

Rating Amount Deduction Net
Exposures Category # Outstanding CRM Amount
Corporate 21006 11,064 - 11,064
Banks [ &3 2,663,488 1,871,457 792,031
Sovercigns cte. - 80,564 - 80,564
Unrated 10,978,269 - 10,978,269

13,733,385 1,871,457 11,861,928

CRM = Credit Risk Mitigation



35.2.4

35.2.5

35.3

Credit Risk: Disclosures with respeet to Credit Risk Mitigation for Standardized
Approaches-Basel T Specific

The Company has adopted Simple Approach of Credit Risk Mitigation for the Banking Book.
In instance where the Company's exposure on an obligor is sccured by collateral that
conforms with the cligibility criteria under the Simple Approach of CRM, then the Company
reduces its exposurc under that particular transaction by taking into account the risk
mitigating clfect of the collateral for the calculation of capital requirement. i.e. risk weight of
the collateral instrument sccuring the exposure is substituted for the risk weight of the
counterparty. In order to obtain the credit risk mitigation benefit, The Company uses
realizable value ol cligible collaterals to the extent of 80% of outstanding exposure.

Lquity position risk in the banking book-Basel II Specific

Al present Company has no investment position in cquity holdings.
Market Risk
Market Risk Management is the risk that the value of on and off - balance sheet positions of

the Company will be adverscly affected by movements in market rates or prices such as
interest rates. foreien exchange rates. equity prices, credit spreads and / or commodity prices

The Company is exposcd only to interest rate risk in its banking and trading book. Foreign
exchange risk and equity price risk is not applicable to the Company.

The organization sct up for Market Risk Management in the Company is as under: -
The Board of Directors
The Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC)
The Assct-Liability Management Commiltee (ATL.CO); and

Respousibilitics of ALCO

Responsibilitics of ALCO with regard to market risk management aspects include:

Assess the Company’s current balance sheet position.

1

Review the appropriatencss ol the existing strategics.

- Develop assct and hability strategies.

- Set the quintitiable targets to achieve the asset liability strategies.

- Product pricing for borrowing and advances.

- Decide on desired maturity profile and mix ol incremental assets and liabilities.

- Review hquidity & funding plans for the Company.
Responsibilitics of Middle Office

The middle office performs treasury and market risk mahagement activities. It is responsible
for verification of all the deals made by front office and monitoring of portfolio position. It is
responsible for review ol treasury policy, process and involve in research. It works for
measurement. modeling. mitigating, and reporting of interest rate risk and liquidity risk.
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35.4.2 Operational Risk Disclosures-Basel T Specific

36.

37.

38.

38.1

38.2

(o C A

The Company is currently using the Basic Indicator approach to calculate the capital charge for
Operational Risk as per Bascl 11 regulatory framework. The Company's operational risk management
framework has been developed to create an environment within which operational risk can be identified,
measured. manaced and monitored in a consistent manner. '

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
There were no major account balances reclassified or rearranged during the year.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were approved and authorized (or issue on . by the Board of
Dircctors of the Company.

GENERAL
Figures have been rounded-ofT to the nearest thousand rupecs except stated otherwise.

Captions as preseribed in BSD circular No. 4 dated February 17, 2006 issued by the State Bank of
Pakistan in respect of which no amounts are outstanding have not been reproduced in these financial
statements excent for in the balance sheet and the profit and loss account.

o

MANAGING DIRECTOR

E%L
RECTOR DIRECTOR
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